HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD
HAVANT

HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX

Telephone: 023 9247 4174
Fax: 023 9248 0263
Website: www.havant.gov.uk

§¢i Havant

BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING COMMITTEE AGENDA

Membership:  Councillor Smith D (Chairman)

Councillors Mrs Blackett, Bowerman, Cresswell, Fairhurst, Hart, Howard, Hughes
(Vice-Chairman), Keast, Kerrin, Pike, Ponsonby, Shimbart, Thomas and Wade

Meeting: Licensing Committee

Date: Wednesday 28 September 2016

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: Hollybank Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road,

Havant, Hants PO9 2AX

The business to be transacted is set out below:

Nick Leach
Monitoring Officer

20 September 2016

Contact Officer:  Mark Gregory (023) 9244 6232

Email: mark.qgregory@havant.gov.uk

Page

PART 1 (Items open for public attendance)

1 Apologies

2 Minutes

3 Matters Arising

4 Declarations of Interests

To receive and record any declarations of interests from members
present in respect of any of the various matters on the agenda for this

meeting.


http://www.easthants.gov.uk/

5

6

7

Chairman's Report
Charges for Taxis and Private Hire Licensing

Hackney Carriage Unmet Demand Survey

il



GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE,
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6231

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and
observe the meetings. Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to
make deputations on matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this
procedure and for further information please get in touch with the contact
officer for this agenda.

Disabled Access
The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled.
Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO
No Smoking Policy

The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.

Parking

Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park
opposite the Plaza.

il


http://www.havant.gov.uk/

Havant

=, BOROUGH COUNCIL
PROTOCOL AT MEETINGS — RULES OF DEBATE

Rules of Debate

Councillors must always address each other as “Councillor ...” and must
always address the meeting through the Chairman;

A motion must relate to the business included on the agenda or accepted by
the meeting as urgent business

A motion must be proposed and seconded before it is debated until it is either
accepted or rejected by a vote;

An amendment can be proposed to the original motion and this must be
seconded before it is debated;

An amendment cannot be considered if it is inconsistent with an amendment
previously adopted or repeats an amendment previously rejected;

The mover of an original motion may, with the consent of the mover of an
amendment, incorporate an amendment into the motion;

Only one amendment may be moved at a time. No further amendments can be
moved until the previous amendment has been dealt with;

Each amendment must be voted on separately;

If an amendment is carried, the amended motion becomes the substantive
motion to which further amendments may be moved;

If an amendment is lost, other amendments may be moved to the original
motion.

The mover may withdraw an amendment at any time

After an amendment has been carried, the Chairman will read out the amended
(substantive) motion, before accepting any further amendment, or if there are
none, put it to the vote.

Voting

Voting may be by a show of hands or by a ballot at the discretion of the
Chairman;

Councillors may not vote unless they are present for the full duration of the
item;

Where there is an equality of votes, the Chairman may exercise a second
(casting) vote;

Two Councillors may request, before a vote is taken, that the names of those
voting be recorded in the minutes

A recorded vote will always be taken in respect of approval of the Annual
Budget

Councillors may not vote unless they are in the meeting for the full debate on
any particular item

A Councillor may request that his/her vote be recorded in the minutes

v



Public Service Plaza
Civic Centre Road
Havant

Hampshire PO% 2AX

BUS STOP KEY
Services B

20, 21, 39, 63 1
20, 21,36™,39 2
23, 36** 3
23, 27**,37 4
23,27**,36™, 37 5

** - also stops “hail and ride” opposite

Stop 1 in Civic Centre Road

Public
Service
Plaza




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iterp 2

Licensing Committee
15.June.2016

THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF HAVANT

At a meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 15 June 2016

Present

Councillor Smith D (Chairman)

Councillors Mrs Blackett, Cresswell, Fairhurst, Hart, Hughes (Vice-Chairman), Keast,
Kerrin, Sceal, Shimbart, Thomas and Wade

44 APOLOGIES

There were no apologies for absence.

45 MINUTES
The Minutes of the meetings of the Licensing Committee held on 23 March
2016 and 11 May 2016 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.

46 MATTERS ARISING

There were no matters arising.

47 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interests.

48 CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chairman welcomed the new members to the Committee and reminded
members that the next meeting was scheduled for 28 September 2016.

49 PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CURRENT LICENSING ACT 2003 POLICY

Further to Minute the Committee considered the latest amended version of the
licensing policy, which had been changed as a result of the consultation
process.

RECOMMENDED that the Council approve the Statement of Licensing Policy

(as amended) as Council policy subject to the heading of Appendix 2 being
amended to read “Responsible Authorities And Licensing Contacts”.

The meeting commenced a‘:ﬁa(l_?éam and concluded at 5.09 pm



2

Licensing Committee
15.June.2016

Chairman

Page 2



Agenda Item 6

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING COMMITTEE 28 September 2016

CHARGES FOR TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING

Report of the Licensing Officer

Key Decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To consider the Charges for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing for the
financial year 2017/2018.

2.0 Recommendation Itis recommended that:
2.1 The charges as shown as Appendix A are approved for consultation
2.2 The necessary advertisement be placed;

2.3 Inthe event that no representations are received in response to the consultation,
the new charges be recommended at Full Council and be implemented for the financial
year commencing 1% April 2017.

3.0 Summary

3.1 Licensing charges for Taxi and Private Hire were last reviewed in November
2015 and are reviewed on an annual basis. Annual review is important to
ensure that our fees are legally robust and that we have used transparent
methodology.

4.0 Subject of Report

4.1 Havant Borough may only recover certain costs incurred in carrying out licensing
functions as detailed in Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976
Section 53 and Section 70.

4.2  Licensing charges for Taxi and Private Hire were last reviewed in November 2015 for the
financial year 2016/2017. Fees are reviewed annually through an assessment of relevant
costs.

4.3 The proposed fees set out in Appendix A seek to recover all relevant costs to the Council.
The calculation of fees from an assessment of relevant costs is shown in Appendix B.

4.4  Any change to the charges for Vehicle and Operators licences has by law to be
advertised in the local newspaper and any comments have to be considered at a
subsequent meeting of the Licensing Committee.

Page 3



5.0

5.1

5.1.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.3

5.3.1

5.4

5.4.1

5.5

5.5.1

5.6

Implications
Resources:

In arriving at the proposed charges, analysis of combined Hackney
Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle driver, Hackney Carriage, Private Hire Vehicle and
Private Hire Vehicle Operator licensing income/expenditure by the Council’s
Financial Team was undertaken. A copy of the figures produced as a result of
the analysis is shown at Appendix B and effect the proposed charge would have
on annual income at Appendix C.

Legal:

The setting of fees for hackney carriage, private hire vehicle and operator licences is
governed by Section 70 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.
The council may charge such amounts as are sufficient in the aggregate to cover the
reasonable cost of carrying out vehicle inspections, the costs of providing hackney
carriage stands and any reasonable administrative or other costs in connection with these
activities and with the control and supervision of hackney carriages and private hire
vehicles.

The Act sets a maximum fee of £25 for the grant of vehicle and operator licences or any
such sum as the council may determine. If the council wishes to charge more than £25 or
vary its existing charges, the council must publish details in at least one local newspaper
specifying a period of not less than 28 days within which objections to the variation can
be made. A copy of the notice must be available for inspection by the public during the
28 day period and if no objections are received, or any objections made are withdrawn;
the variation shall come into operation on the date of the expiration of the period
specified in the notice. If objections are made and not withdrawn, the council must
consider those objections and set a further date, not later than two months after the first
specified date, on which the variation shall come into force with or without modification
as decided by the council, after consideration of the objections.

Strategy:

The proposed fees ensure Havant Borough Council continue to reflect relevant costs
associated with licensing. Re-assessing costs and fees is necessary to meet our strategic
objective of achieving financial sustainability.

Risks:

The fees proposed can be justified against a transparent assessment of our
costs for administering these particular licences.

Communications:
The taxi trade will be informed of the proposed fees via an advertisement which
will be placed and should any comments be received, these will be referred back

to the Licensing Committee on 9t November 2016.

For the Community:

Page 4



5.6.1 The community will be provided with a safe form of public transport funded
through the fees proposed in this report.

5.6.2 The Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) has been completed and concluded the
following that no further action necessary, attached at Appendix D.

6.0 Consultation

6.1 Public Consultation to follow agreement of the proposals in this report.
Appendixes:

Appendix A — Proposed charges

Appendix B — Financial analysis figures

Appendix C — Effect of proposed charges in annual income

Appendix D — Integrated Impact Assessment

Background Papers:
None

Agreed and signed off by:
Legal: 8t September 2016

Finance: 8t September 2016
Relevant Executive Head: 16" September 2016

Contact Officer:  Hilary Smith

Job Title: Licensing Officer
Telephone: 023 9244 6653
E-Mail: hilary.smith@havant.gov.uk

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Approved Proposed Comments
Licensing Committee Prices Prices
2016/2017 2017/2018
HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PHV PRICES £ p £ p
1. Hackney Carriage Licence 205.00 170.00 1 and 3 exclude vehicle mechanical inspection element. A maximum
(including plate) statutory fee of £25 applies in respect of prices 1, 3, and 5 but the
maximum may be increased by following the procedure laid down by
2. Meter Test 12.00 12.00 statute
HBC is capped to issue 40 Hackney Carriage licences, meter test
3. Private Hire Vehicle Licence 150.00 150.00 now a separate fee for compliance purposes.
(including plate)
4. Vehicle Mechanical Inspections
o Pre application inspection 89.00 90.00
2) Inspection on application (incl. first re-inspection) 89.00 90.00
Q
D Second and subsequent re-inspection 48.00 50.00
oy
N Failure to keep appointment 42.00 45.00
Special vehicles and limousines (1% hour test) 134.00 135.00
5. Operators Licence
Initial application and standard renewal (5 year) 435.00 448.00 Change in legislation, standard licence length 5 years.
For each additional operator address 435.00 448.00 Fee for each additional address from which the licensee operates
Committee grant (1 year) 125.00 137.00 Reduced licence length can be issued if determined by Licensing

Committee.

APPENDIX A



APPENDIX A

O 5hp 1
o VMUG

Approved Proposed
Licensing Committee Prices Prices Comments
2016/2017 2017/2018
£ p £ p
Drivers Licence (Joint Hackney and PHV)
Initial application (3 year) 110.00 137.00 Driver’s Licence prices include the costs of Drivers Identification
Standard renewal (3 year) 100.00 107.00 Cards and appropriate checks. Any application after the expiry date
Committee grant Initial (1 year) - 125.00 of an existing Driver’s Licence will be charged at the initial
Committee grant Renewal (1 year) 88.00 95.00 application fee. Change in legislation, standard licence length 3
years however reduced licence length can be issued if determined
Knowledge Test by Licensing Committee.
Initial 40.00 45.00
Re-test 40.00 45.00




APPENDIX B

New Driver Licence Application (1 Year) Vol 145 New Driver Licence Application (3 Year) Vol 145
Staffing Costs Staffing Costs
Initial enquiry and explanation Initial enquiry and explanation
of process LSO 15mins £ - of process LSO 15mins £ -
Check and process submitted Check and process submitted
application forms and DBS form CSO 45Mins £ 8.11 application forms and DBS form CSO 45Mins £ 8.11
Receive application in office and Receive application in office and
check all documentation, enter check all documentation, enter
details onto LalPac and place details onto LalPac and place
in folder LSO 60 Mins f - in folder LSO 60 Mins £ -
When application complete, When application complete,
documents checked prior to documents checked prior to
passing to LO for approval LSO 10Mins £ - passing to LO for approval LSO 10Mins £ -
Decision made whether to grant Decision made whether to grant
or refuse application after check or refuse application after check
details on the documents LO 20Mins £ - details on the documents LO 20Mins £ -
Produce and Issue licence with Produce and Issue licence with
ID Badge LSO 15Mins £ - ID Badge LSO 15Mins £ -
Cost of Materials Cost of Materials
Printer costs Printer costs
£85 per annum shared between £85 per annum shared between
647 new and licence renewals £ 0.13 647 new and licence renewals £ 0.13
Components of actual licence £ 1.00 Components of actual licence £ 1.00
Other Costs Other Costs
DVLA checks £ 575 DVLA checks £ 17.25
Medical checks total £150 per Medical checks total £150 per
year £ 0.23 year £ 023
35 mins per call
over 37 calls
35 mins per cgll over 39 =.1.295 mins
Saticences " Routine Checks & Complaints. LO 2Mins £ - imees’™” " Routine Checks & Complaints. LO 2Mins £ -
3 Mins per call over 39 2:22592121”
calls = 117 mins divided by . . . 117 mins divided . . .
647 licences Routine Checks & Complaints. LSO 0.2Mins £ 0.05| |byesicences RoUtine Checks & Complaints. LSO 0.2 Mins £ -
Democratic
Democratic services are is;1ecrl\l/JI§eecsi i::—?he
included in the support . . support service . .
senvice Ohead Absorption of licence refusals £ - Ofhead Absorption of licence refusals £ - £ -
Support Service Overhead Support Service Overhead
Support Service overhead Support Service overhead
allocation based on hourly allocation based on hourly
absorption 167.2 £ 85.24 absorption 167.2 £ 85.24
£ 100.51 £ 111.96
Current Licence Fee £ 98.00 Current Licence Fee £ 110.00
Difference £ 251 Difference £ 196

Page 9




Driver Licence Renewal(3 Year) Volumes 502
Staffing Costs
Production and sending of renewal
letter LSO 15Mins £ 2.70
Arrangement of Collection LSO 5Mins £ 0.90
Production of licence and ID Badge LSO 15Mins £ 2.70
Customer services check submitted
application forms and associated
papers CSO 20Mins £ 4.07
Forms submitted to Licensing where
forms checked and details entered
onto Lalpac LSO 30Mins £ 5.41
Annual admin re-licence checks. LO 55Mins £ 14.68
Cost of Materials
Printer costs
£85 per annum shared between
647 new and licence renewals £ 0.13
Components of actual licence £ 1.00
Other Costs
DVLA checks £ 1.92
On average a driver is checked every 3 years
Medical checks total £150 per year £ 0.23
Routine Checks & Complaints. 2 mins f 0.53
Routine Checks & Complaints. LSO 0.2mins £ 0.04
Absorption of licence refusals
Support Service Overhead
Support Service overhead allocation
based on hourly absorption 142.2 £ 7249
106.82
Current Licence Fee £ 100.00
Difference £ 6.82

Page 10



Driver Licence Renewal(1 Year) Volumes 502
Staffing Costs
Production and sending of
renewal letter LSO 15 Mins £ 2.70
Arrangement of Collection LSO 5 Mins £ 0.90
Production of licence and ID Badge LSO 15 Mins £ 2.70
Customer services check
submitted application forms and
associated papers CSoO 20 Mins £ 4.07
Forms submitted to Licensing
where forms checked and details
entered onto Lalpac LSO 30 Mins £ 5.41
Annual admin re-licence checks. LO 40 Mins £ 10.68
Cost of Materials
Printer costs
£85 per annum shared between
647 new and licence renewals £ 0.13
Components of actual licence £ 1.00
Other Costs
DVLA checks £ 1.92
On average a driver is checked every 3
years
Medical checks total £150 per year £ 0.23
Routine Checks & Complaints. LO 2 mins £ 0.53
Routine Checks & Complaints. LSO 0.2 mins £ 0.04
Absorption of licence refusals
Support Service Overhead
Support Service overhead allocation
based on hourly absorption 127.2 £ 64.85
95.16
Current Licence Fee £ 88.00
Difference £ 7.16

Page 11




Knowledge Test (Initial and re-test)

Staffing Costs

Compiling additional tests =

6*180 mins = 1080/128 = 8.5

mins LO 8.5mins £ 2.27
120 mins per test, 127
attendees per year. 43

app blocks offered . .
@120 mins =5160 Staging of the test in a

mins/127=40 mins booked room LO 40 £ 10.68
Enter results onto Lalpac LO 10Mins £ 2.67

Support Service Overhead
Support Service overhead
allocation based on hourly

absorption 585 £ 29.82

f 45.44
Current Licence Fee £ 40.00
Difference £ 5.44

Page 12




Hackney Vehicle Licence Application

Staffing Costs

Renewal letter produced and sent by pos LSO

Check and process submitted

application forms and relevant

documents at licensing office. Input

details onto Lalpac. LSO

Contact with Norse re tests LSO

Produce Licence and plate once mech
test passed LSO

Once application checked, documents
checked and input on LALPAC LSO

Annual admin costs, control and
supervision including arrangement for
random mechanical tests not charged to
vehicle owner LO

Check MOT's and vehicle tax on-line as
there is no paper evidence LSO
Cost of Materials

Cost of plate and associated
consumables

Other Costs

Invoice for
£3679.20 that
covers three years

Demand study around number of issued
Hackney licences.

Support Service Overhead

Support Service overhead allocation based
on hourly absorption

Volumes 40

15 Mins

35 Mins

5 mins

25 Mins

20 Mins

65 Mins

10 Mins

175

Staffing Costs

Renewal letters produced
2.70 and sent by post LSO

Check, process submitted
application forms and

relevant documents at
Licensing office. Input

details onto Lalpac LSO
Contact with Norse re

tests LSO

£ 6.31
£ 0.90

Produce Licence and plate
once mech test passed LSO
When application
complete,
documentschecked and
input on Lalpac

Annual Admin costs,
control and supervision
including arrangement for
random mechanical tests
not charged to vehicle
owner LO

£ 4.51

£ 3.60 LSO

£ 17.35

Check MOT's and vehicle
tax on-line as there is no
1.80 paper evidence LSO

£ 12.50 | |Cost of Materials
Cost of plate and

associated consumables

£ 30.66

89.22( |Support Service Overhead
Support Service overhead
allocation based on hourly

absorption

Current Licence Fee
Difference

£ 205.00
£ 35.45

PHV Vehicle Licence Application

15 Mins

35 Mins

5 Mins

25 Mins

20 Mins

65 Mins

10 Mins

195 £

Volumes 610

£ 2.70

£ 6.31

£ 0.90

£ 4.51

£ 3.60

£ 17.35

1.80

£ 12.50

99.41

£ 149.09

Current Licence Fee
Difference

Meter Testing and fare charge
amendments LO

45 Mins

Page 13

£ 150.00

£ 0.91

£ 12.01




Page 14

Operator Licence (5 Year) Volume 59 Operator Licence (1 Year) Volume 5¢

Renewal letters produced Renewal letters produced

and sent by post Lso 15mins £ 2.70 and sent by post LSO 15mins £ 2.70

Forms submitted at reception Forms submitted at reception

and checked CSO 20Mins £ 4.07 and checked CSO 20Mins £ 4.07

Check and process submitted Check and process submitted

application forms and application forms and

relevant documents at relevant documents at

licensing office. Input details licensing office. Input details

onto Lalpac. LSO 30Mins £ 5.41 onto Lalpac. LSO 30Mins £ 5.41

Passed to LO for decision. LSO 10Mins £ 1.80 Passed to LO for decision. LSO 10Mins £ 1.80

Once application checked, Once application checked,

documents checked and documents checked and

input on LALPAC LSO 10Mins £ 1.80 input on LALPAC LSO 10Mins £ 1.80

Annual admin costs, control Annual admin costs, control

and supervision including and supervision including

arrangement for random arrangement for random

mechanical tests not charged mechanical tests not charged

to vehicle owner LO 450 mins £  160.19 to vehicle owner LO 90mins £ 32.04

Cost of Materials Cost of Materials
Support Service Overhead Support Service Overhead

Support Service overhead Support Service overhead

allocation based on hourly allocation based on hourly

absorption 535 £ 272.74 absorption 175 £ 89.22
£ 448.72 £ 137.04

Current Licence Fee £ 435.00 Current Licence Fee £ 125.00

Difference £ 13.72 Difference £ 12.04
£ - £ -




G| abed

Effect which the proposed charges would have on the Council’'s annual income for Taxi and Private Hire Licensing APPENDIX C
£ increase |£ income | |£ increase |£ income | [Volume| |£ increase |£ income Volume |£ +/- £ income +/- Volume £ +/- £ income +/-
2013/14 |2013/14 2014/15 [2014/15 2015/16 |2015/16 2016/17 |2016/17 2017/18|2017/18
HC licence 0 £0.00 6| £240.00 40 10| £400.00 40 -14|decrease -560 40 -35|decrease -1400
PHYV licence 4|£2,000.00 5[£2,500.00 520 -3|-£1,560.00 540 -12|decrease -6480 610 0 0
Operator 5| £275.00 6| £330.00 60 -17|-£1,160.00 55 268|increase*14740 | |*11 13|increase 143
Driver new 4| £440.00 4| £440.00 70 -30|-£2,100.00 115 12|increase* 1380 136 27 |increase 3672
Driver renewal 1| £470.00 2| £940.00 470 11| £5,170.00 445 12|increase* 5340 | |**0 7 0
Knowledge test 1| £110.00 1| £110.00 70 7| £490.00 115 0 0 127 5|increase 635
TOTAL £3,295.00 £4,560.00 £1,240.00 £14,420 £3,050

*due to issuing
of 3 and 5 year
licences,
anticipated
decrease next
year.

* no renewals
as 5 year
licence, first
renewal due
Nov 2020,
new only

**no
renewals as
3 year
licence, first
renewal due
Oct 2018




This page is intentionally left blank



/| @bed

East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 2 Nov 2011

APPENDIX D

Integrated Impact Assessment
In exploring options for service design and alternative methods, managers should consider the need to ensure that the Council is meeting its
legal duties in respect of community safety, equalities, health & safety, safeguarding children & vulnerable adults. In addition they should
consider council commitments toward sustainability, economic impact and consideration of the impact of changes on people living in both rural

and urban areas.

Lead Assessor | Date Who else What is the Why/how is it changing?
involved Service/function/project/strategy?
Hilary Smith 02/09/2015 | N/A EH Commercial / Taxi Licensing / Proposed licence fees for 2017/18

HC & PHYV licence fees

Service Delivery Yes No Explanation

1. Is this service provided elsewhere locally? X

2. Could this service be provided by the X Statutory local authority function
voluntary/community sector?

Can this service be changed in ways that it:

Issue | +ve | -ve | Neutral | Explanation
Customer, Community & Equality

3. Protects or improves the Health & Wellbeing of any section of the X

community

4. Promotes community safety including reducing crime & anti social X

behaviour '

5. Ensures it does not disadvantage any individuals on the basis of age, X

disability, gender reassignment, marriage/civil partnership,

maternity/pregnancy, race, religion/belief, sex or sexual orientation 2

6. Advances equality of opportunity between those who share the X

characteristics in Q5 and those who do not

7. Promotes a vibrant, inclusive and cohesive community by: enabling and X

encouraging everyone to engage with the council and its partners and take

part in community/voluntary activities




Q| abed

East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 2 Nov 2011

8. Retains or improves access to use, local shops, services, facilities and
leisure/recreation services

9. Is designed to reduce the inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage

10. Does not disadvantage current or former armed service personnel, their
families or veterans?

11. Contributes positively to perceptions of Place, eg, affordable and
resource/energy efficient housing needs that meets everyone’s needs

x| X| X| X

Economic

12. Provides or supports local employment opportunities

13. Provides opportunities for, supports and develops local Third Sector
(voluntary and not-for-profit) organisations and/or SME’s?

XX

14. creates, improves or supports local education, training or work experience
opportunities

Health & Safety

15. Impacts on the Health & Safety of employees, contractors, service users
or the public

16. Improves the H&S of employees, contractors, service users or the public

Rural Communities

17. Supports or enhances access to transport, public services, educational,
leisure or recreational opportunities in rural areas

18. Sustains, develops or improves rural infrastructure including: buildings,
transport (including foot and cycle paths), energy and electronic infrastructure

19. Protects or develops land-based and other rural businesses and sustain or
create jobs in rural areas

20. Supports or develops the capacity and capabilities of rural organisations in
all sectors to deliver services, work in partnership and support community
activities

X X| X| X| |[X| X

Safeguarding Children & Vulnerable Adults

21. Promotes and complies with the safeguarding policy & procedures

22. Prevents or reduces the risk of children or adults becoming victims of
domestic abuse *

XX

Sustainability

23. Impacts on the carbon footprint of the Borough/District, i.e. energy and




6] @bed

East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 2 Nov 2011

transport use

24. Supports the ability to adapt to a changing climate or be resilient to its X
longer term impacts i.e. hotter summers, extreme weather events, flooding
and sea level rise

25. Promotes sustainable use of resources i.e. using resources such as water, X
land and minerals efficiently, minimising pollution, promoting re-use and
recycling, and encouraging sustainable consumption or production

26. Conserves the natural environment by protecting and enhancing: X
biodiversity, species, natural habitats and green space, and landscapes
Assessment Conclusion Explanation
27. Can any negative impacts be mitigated? N/A
28. Can any positive impacts be enhanced? N/A
29. Do you need to seek more information to conclude? No

30. Do you need to carry out a further assessment, such as a health & Safety | No
or Customer & Equality Impact Assessment? If so please state why.

31. Assessment Summary (this can be copied onto your committee report
template). Ensure decision makers are fully aware of the potential impact of
their decisions.

I Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act requires all local authorities, including joint authorities and police authorities, to consider crime and disorder
reduction while exercising all their duties

2 These are the “protected characteristics” identified in the Equality Act 2010 which came into force on 15t October 2010 and replaced earlier equality
legislation. The council has legal duties to:

e Eliminate discrimination

¢ Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

o Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it
N.B. Services may lawfully treat individuals or groups differently if that is necessary to meet their different needs.

3 Those associated with the armed forces may experience isolation. Some families have a parent away from the area for long periods of time. Can single

Head of Service sign off (title).................... Date.................



0c 9bed

East Hampshire and Havant Borough Council Version 2 Nov 2011

person discounts apply? How are you communicating the benefits of what you are assessing to people associated with the armed forces? Did you know we
have a web page that could help?

4 A vulnerable adult is a person who is aged 18 years or older and:

is living in residential accommodation, such as a care home or a residential special school;

is living in sheltered housing;

is receiving domiciliary care in his or her own home;

is receiving any form of health care;

is detained in a prison, remand centre, young offender institution, secure training centre or attendance centre or under the powers of the Immigration
and Asylum Act 1999;

is in contact with probation services;

is receiving a welfare service of a description to be prescribed in regulations;

is receiving a service or participating in an activity which is specifically targeted at people with age-related needs, disabilities or prescribed physical or
mental health conditions. (age-related needs includes needs associated with frailty, illness, disability or mental capacity)

is an expectant or nursing mothers living in residential care

is receiving direct payments from a local authority/HSS body in lieu of social care services;

requires assistance in the conduct of his or her own affairs

Whilst the majority of adult domestic abuse victims are women, men are also subject to domestic abuse in both same sex and different sex relationships.
The government defines domestic violence as: ‘any incident of threatening behaviour, violence or abuse (psychological, physical, sexual, financial or
emotional) between adults, aged 18 and over, who are, or have been, intimate partners or family members, regardless of gender and sexuality.’

Family members are defined as: mother, father, son, daughter, brother, sister or grandparents. These may be direct relatives, in-laws or step-family.

This definition is also used by the Association of Chief Police Officers and the Crown Prosecution Service. Where the victim of the abuse is less than 18 years
of age the abuse will normally be treated as child abuse.



Agenda ltem 7

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting Body: Licensing Committee 28 September 2016

Subject: Hackney Carriage unmet demand survey
Report of: Licensing Officer

For decision: YES
Portfolio: N/A

Key decision: No

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the findings of the unmet demand
survey
for Hackney Carriages which was conducted in June and July 2016

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That members resolve to adopt one of the three options suggested by the
report regarding the current limit of forty Hackney Carriage licenses issued by
Havant Borough Council.

3.0 Summary

3.1 In order to retain a limit on the number of Hackney Carriage licenses issued
by
Havant Borough Council, Department for Transport (DfT) best practice
guidance
and previous case law requires that a survey is conducted to determine
whether
there is any latent or patent unmet demand within the area of the licensing
authority.

3.2 The survey was conducted between March and July 2016 by CTS Traffic &
Transportation Ltd who have carried such surveys for many licensing
authorities
across the country.

Page 21



3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3
are

The final report of the survey concludes that there is some evidence of unmet
demand at certain times but that this demand could be met by better usage of
the existing number of hackney carriages and that this approach would be
preferable to issuing additional Hackney Carriage Plates. The report writer
states “Our evidence suggests that there is no need for further plates to be
issued were the trade to work closely together to ensure observed demand
was met by supply. The privilege and strong opportunity of the present
favourable situation must be honoured and taken advantage of. We believe
that a further five plates need to be at least on stand-by during the observed
peak weekday periods and at least on Saturday nights through the busiest
parts of the year.”

The report is shown at appendix A.

Subject of Report

The final report of the survey concludes that there is evidence of unmet
demand for hackney carriages both patent and latent which is significant at
this point in time in the Havant area. However, tests of availability of vehicles
suggest plenty of spare capacity within the small hackney carriage fleet which
it would be preferable to be used rather than the issue of the five extra plates
which would otherwise be suggested by the statistics. It is a consideration that
the prime weekend for CTS Rank observations fell on the same weekend as
both the Pride event in London and the Goodwood Festival of speed which
brought significant additional demand on the Hackney trade.

This conclusion enables Havant Borough Council, if it so wishes, to retain its
current limit of forty Hackney Carriage licenses issued within its controlled
district.

The report raises several recommendations for members to consider. These

shown on page 41 of the report. However the key outcome of the report is for
the committee to decide between the options below.

In brief: There is evidence of some unmet demand at certain times / days for
hackney carriages both patent and latent which is significant at this point in
time in the Havant area.

- Option 1 — retain the limit of forty Hackney Carriage vehicles.

-Option 2 — Retain a limit but increase the number of plates to 45

- Option 3 — remove the limit on the number of Hackney Carriage
vehicles.

Page 22



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.0

However, should the Licensing Authority remove the limitation, the current policy
specifying the number of wheelchair accessible vehicles would no longer be
appropriate. Further, with an unrestricted number of vehicles, it may be appropriate to
reconsider the vehicle specifications. Should members prefer this option a further
report will be brought back to Committee proposing a change in vehicle specifications
and policy.

Implications

Resources:
No additional work created for HBC staff

Legal:
The report enables HBC to comply with DfT best practice guidance

Strategy:
No impact on HBC strategy

Risks:
None for Havant Borough Council

Communications:
Survey conducted amongst the service users and stakeholders

For the Community:
None

The Integrated Impact Assessment (llA) has been completed and
concluded the following:

Not required at this stage. The committee should have regard to the analysis
of the impact of retaining or removing the limit on the number of hackney
carriages and other recommendations as set out in the attached report.

Should the Committee opt for option 3 (removal of the limit), an assessment

will be carried out and proposals will be made to the Committee on any
changes that would be required to other existing policies.

Consultation
As per the report at appendix A.

Page 23



Appendix A — CTS Traffic & Transportation Ltd Unmet Demand survey report.
Agreed and signed off by:

Team Leader

Contact Officer: Gerry Thorne

Job Title: Licensing Officer
Telephone: 02392 446657
E-Mail: gerry.thorne@havant.gov.uk

Page 24



=

Taxis

Queue
this side

Havant Borough Council

Hackney carriage
unmet demand survey

Final Report

THE DATA COLLECTION SPECIALISTS August 2016




Page 26



Contents

EXE@CUtIiVE SUMMAIY tuciiuciiiemiranmiesmsesmrasmsssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssnssnnsssnsnns vii
3 PN I 5 3 o oo T LW ot o o o s 1
2. Background to taxi licensing in Havant...........ccoociiiiiinnsnnesse s snesnnsnanses 7
3. Results from rank SUIrVEYS ...cccciiieiiirimmmssnsmisassmsssssssanssssasssssssssssnnsssnnnsnnnnns 13
4. Public Consultation results .......cccccciiiciiiii s sriis s srrre s e s s 23
5. Stakeholder Consultation.......ccccciiiiiiiiniinsssnssnrsrsesnsssssa s s sssanssansnsnnnas 27
6. Licensed Vehicle Trade Consultation........cciiiciiiiicimiiccnsnsmsss s sssassnnnnss 31
7. Summary and CONCIUSIONS ..iicciiciiemmranmrsnsmansmsassssssssssssnssnnssanssanssanssnnssnnsnns 33
8. Recommendations ...ciiiciiiiiimiimremssmsemran s s srsnsrsnssansssnsssnssansssnnsnnnsnnnss 41

CTS Traffic & Transportation Ltd.
Unit 14 Aqueduct Mill, Aqueduct Street, Preston, PR1 7]N
Tel: (01772) 251 400 Fax: (01772) 252 900

E-mail: enquiries@ctstraffic.co.uk Web-site: www.ctstraffic.co.uk

Page 27



Page 28



Data Quality Assurance:

Report by: Ian Millership
Date: 08/08/16

Checked by: Joe Maclaren
Date: 09/08/16

Page 29



Page 30



Executive summary

CTS Traffic and Transportation were appointed by Havant Borough Council to undertake
their “Taxi survey” on 15% January 2016. This report presents the results of all
investigations undertaken to provide a database of robust information on which a decision
can be taken by councillors in regard to the hackney carriage vehicle limitation policy. All
research was undertaken in line with the current Department for Transport Best Practice
Guidance (April 2010) and taking advantage of the extensive research undertaken by the
Law Commission in their recent review of licensing.

Havant is one of eleven local councils within the County of Hampshire. It is a multi-centred
area but transport powers lie with the County, who therefore have control of provision of
hackney carriage ranks and overall transport policy. However, each Borough has its own
Transport Statement. Travel planning, including use of ‘taxis’ is encouraged part of which
is provision of taxi ranks where necessary. Further, station travel plans are being
developed for both Havant and Bedhampton. Potential significant change may occur in
2017 with the new local rail franchise due to start in June, with decision of who will be the
operator in February 2017.

Present industry statistics confirm the policy of limiting hackney carriage vehicle numbers
has been in place since at least 1994. Five plates were added after the 2003 study, lifting
hackney carriage numbers by 14%. Since 1997, when private hire numbers were first
formally reported by the DfT, their numbers have increased 58%, fairly modest growth
although this has reduced the proportion of the fleet which is hackney carriage from 9%
in 1997 to 6% now. Driver humbers have increased about 16% since the last survey.
Operator numbers have also increased since the last survey despite mergers. In general,
the hackney carriage and private hire fleets tend to be fairly separate in their operation,
with just a few hackney carriages working for private hire companies. There is a hackney
carriage association and radio network. The current permit system at Havant station is
very favourable compared to most other situations around the country at this time.

A rank survey programme was undertaken resulting in 94 hours of observations, although
nearly half of these covered one rank which was not used during our observations, with
the remainder covering the only really active rank at Havant station. The Leigh Park rank
saw 28 vehicle movements over two days, but only two were private hire vehicles, with
the bulk private cars using the space. The Havant station forecourt rank is more tightly
controlled and little abused by any other vehicles. Our observations found 80% of the
hackney carriage movements of saloon style. A high level of drivers assisting passengers
into vehicles was observed, but no use by any persons in wheel chairs at all.

The Havant station rank is busy for all the extended hours the rail service operates. Overall
demand is not high - never more than a passenger every three minutes. Current
observations found average levels of supply and demand at this rank very close, meaning
that any passenger peaks could very easily lead to passengers having to wait for vehicles
to arrive. Fairly uniquely around the country in our recent surveys, passenger growth for
the hackney carriage service very closely matched the nationally published level of
passenger growth for Havant station. Since 2013, average occupancy of departing
hackney carriages has reduced whilst the Saturday evening demand saw higher sustained
demand over a longer period than in 2013.

Page 31



Just 53% of the total fleet was observed during the survey period - although it is known
that one plate had no vehicle at the time of the survey and that up to four others rarely
served the station (there were just three vehicles without permits current at the time of
the survey according to the rail operator). This suggests plenty of spare capacity in the
fleet which does not appear to being used at the time of most passenger demand. The
ISUD index based on observed survey hours suggested unmet demand levels which were
significant. A sensitivity test allowing for no issues in the unobserved off-peak hours found
the unmet demand below the level that is significant. This leads us to suggest there is
clearly an issue with vehicle supply not matching passenger demand but that issue of
further plates would not be the best way to resolve these issues (see below).

200 people were consulted with two samples outside the main Havant central area. This
sample suggested a high level of recent usage of licensed vehicles (63%), increased from
2013. People make an average of 4.1 trips per person per month by licensed vehicle,
although there is variation over the areas. 70% get their ‘taxis’ by phone although this is
reduced from 2013. One private hire company had 55% of all company mentions whilst
the second company had 41%, consistent across the area. Loyalty to single companies
was high. With 6% not remembering seeing a hackney carriage and 50% not
remembering when they last used one, level of hackney carriage trips was just 0.4 per
person per month, a tenth of the overall usage of licensed vehicles.

80% of mentions of rank were the station rank. Leigh Park and Hayling Island ranks were
mentioned, with 6% saying they did use these other ranks. We suspect these may actually
be either people booking hackney carriages or picking up private hire at ranks from
arranged phone calls. Emsworth station was the only significant place people would like a
rank. There was a higher response in terms of issues with hackney carriages - but as
often, dominated by their perceived cost. The level of quoted need for wheel chair
accessible services appeared to have reduced since 2013, with an almost equal split
between those needing such vehicles between them being wheel chair accessible and
modified in some other way. There was a high increase in people giving up waiting for
hackney carriages compared to 2013, confirming the rank survey observations in this
respect.

In terms of wanting liveried hackney carriage vehicles, 64% did not know but 26% said
they would prefer this.

Stakeholders mainly told us their customers tended to phone for ‘taxis’, with many
providing free phones or cards for customers to use. Just a very small number were aware
of the rank at Havant station, none were aware of any other ranks. There were some
issues mentioned with delay in vehicles arriving - specifically not keeping to the quoted
reaction times from phone bookings.

Driver consultation obtained a similar level of response to 2013. Just four hackney
carriages said they were on a radio circuit. There was a slightly higher stated level of
quoted sharing of vehicles, but still not overall high. Quite high average and maximum
levels of operating days and hours were quoted, albeit similar to 2013. This time more
said they worked seven days. There did not appear to be any issues which restrained
drivers working - 54% saying they worked when demand was highest. Of the multiple
responses received to how drivers obtained fares, 28% were from phone, 23% rank, 18%
hail and 15% each for school and other contracts.

Page 32



A slightly reduced level felt the limit policy should remain, but still 84% of respondents.
Some response was given to the public benefit drivers felt the limit gave, with the top
benefit being they felt it guaranteed vehicles being at ranks. 90% of drivers answered the
question about livery, with 44% saying they preferred a livery, 33% against and 22%
with no opinion. A key reduction was the lack of request for more ranks in 2016.

In conclusion, Havant has seen growth in usage of hackney carriage vehicles since 2013,
which is unlike many other results from recent surveys. Further, the high level of privilege
of the station rank situation is also unlike many other recent surveys. The major concern
is the hackney carriage fleet is so dependent on the rail station permit and demand. This
is compounded by the recent passenger growth being alongside a reduction in vehicle
occupancy, meaning more vehicles are needed to service the same number of customers.
This is worsened further by the extension of the Saturday evening peak demand levels,
which are even more disparate to the general level of Saturday flow.

Despite evidence of plenty of spare capacity in the fleet, as in 2013, there was unmet
demand observed, both during weekday off peak hours and more particularly during the
sustained high Saturday evening and night demand. The privilege and strong opportunity
for the hackney carriage fleet needs to be honoured and taken advantage of. Our
estimates suggest that a further five of the current fleet plates need to be at least on
stand-by during observed weekday peaks and more particularly on Saturday nights
through the busiest parts of the year.

The announcement of the revised franchise arrangements for Havant station provide an
opportunity for a key internal review of the situation in February 2017, when a more
rounded decision can be made about how passenger needs might best be met. The
committee should reserve the right to issue more plates, or review if the limit remains a
valid policy for the area, once this decision about the new franchise is made. The council
need to keep the activity of plates at the station under regular internal review, and ensure
that all plates issued have active vehicles attached preferably with current and active
permits for the station.

Notwithstanding the above, this survey provides the hackney carriage trade with evidence
which they should be able to use to increase their business further, and to ensure
significant improvement is made to meeting peak passenger need.

There does not appear to be any further need to review or consider adding any further
ranks apart from perhaps working with the other railway company at Emsworth station to
see if a rank could be developed and activated there.

Further detailed recommendations are contained in the final chapter of this Report.

Page 33



Page 34



Introduction

Havant Council is responsible for the licensing of hackney carriage and
private hire vehicles operating within the council area. The licensing
authority retains a limit on the number of hackney carriage vehicles it
licences. DfT sources suggest the limit was in place since at least 1994
when formal statistics were first published. Surveys testing the policy and
level of the limit were last undertaken in 2013 and previously 2003.

Study timetable

Havant appointed CTS Traffic and Transportation on 15t January 2016 to
undertake this survey of taxi demand in line with our quotation dated
January 2016 as revised at the Inception Meeting held by telephone on 215t
January 2016.

Our review was carried out between February and July 2016, with
pedestrian survey work undertaken in June 2016. Licensed vehicle driver
opinions were obtained using a letter / questionnaire issued by the Council
at the end of January 2016, with return due by the end of February. Other
key stakeholder consultation was undertaken between February and July.
Rank surveys were undertaken in late June 2016 at a similar time to the
previous 2013 rank surveys (perhaps one week earlier). A Draft Final report
was submitted and this was reviewed in July 2016 to identify any factual
or missing issues. This Final Report was issued in late July 2016.

National background and definitions

At the present time, hackney carriage and private hire licensing is carried
out under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 (as amended by various further
legislation including the Transport Act 1985, especially Section 16) in
regard to hackney carriages and the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 with reference to private hire vehicles. A humber of
modifications have been made within more recent legislation and through
case law.

The issue of limits on hackney carriage vehicle licences (and other
potentially restrictive practices) were considered by the Office of Fair
Trading (OfT) (and latterly the House of Commons Select Committee on
Transport). The Department for Transport most recently published Best
Practice Guidance in April 2010 to cover a number of more recent issues
and take on board both the recommendations of the OfT and House of
Commons Select Committee (HoC SC).

More recently a further HoC SC has led to the Law Commission (LC) taking
on a wide ranging review of vehicle licensing law to be completed over the
next few years. The consultation document from the LC was released in
mid-May 2012. The final LC recommendations published on 23 May 2014
including 84 recommendations (specific recommendation numbers in
brackets below from Report) including:

Page 35



- Retaining the two-tier system (1)

- A statutory definition of pre-booking (3) and a new offence of anyone
other than a locally licensed taxi driver accepting a booking ‘there and
then’ (10)

- That the term “hackney carriage” should be replaced in legislation with
the word “taxi” (4)

- New duty on taxi drivers to stop in specified circumstances if so
determined by the local licensing authority (12)

- Each licensing authority under a duty to consult on the need to alter
rank provision, not exceeding every three years (13)

- Introduction of national standards for taxi and private hire services (30)

- Licensing authorities retain power to set local taxi standards over and
above national standards (46)

- A more flexible power to introduce and remove taxi licensing zones (57)

- Licensing authorities continue to have power to limit the number of taxi
vehicles licensed in their area (58)

- Subject to a statutory public interest test with how this statutory test
should be applied determined by the Secretary of State (59)

- Reviewed every three years and subject to local consultation (60)

- Mandatory disability awareness training for all drivers (62)

- An accessibility review at three year intervals (65)

Other recommendations are included of less relevance to this current
report. The status of this report and draft Bill remains unclear at the time
of writing this report, with no specific Government response yet provided
nor any date for when this might be provided.

The Deregulation Bill 2015 originally contained three clauses impacting on
taxi licensing. These covered unlicensed relatives being able to drive
private hire vehicles (dropped), operators being able to transfer work
across borders and length of driver and operator licences. An opportunity
was also given for trade representatives to identify conditions of licence
that were felt to be unduly restrictive. None of these really impact on the
issue of unmet demand directly but could have some impacts on operations
which might move demand from hackney carriages towards private hire
more than the current situation might. Both clauses taken forward came
into effect in October 2015.

At the present time, passenger carrying vehicles in England are split by
passenger capacity. All vehicles able to carry nine or more passengers are
dealt with under national public service vehicle licensing and licensing
authorities only have jurisdiction over those carrying eight or less
passengers. These locally administered vehicles are subdivided into:

e Hackney carriage vehicles (sometimes referred to as ‘taxis’ in
legislation), which alone are able to wait at ranks and pick up people
in the street (ply for hire). To operate such a vehicle also requires a
driver to be licensed to drive within the area the vehicle is licensed
to operate

Page 36



e Private hire vehicles, which can only be booked through an operating
centre and who, otherwise, are not insured for their passengers
(often also known as ‘taxis’ by the public, or mini-cabs in London and
some other areas). To operate such a vehicle requires a vehicle and
driver licence, and there must also be an affiliation to an operator.
Such vehicles can only transport passengers who have made
bookings via this operator.

For the sake of clarity, this report will refer to ‘licensed vehicles” when
meaning hackney carriage and private hire collectively, and to the specific
type when referencing either specific type of vehicle. The term ‘taxi’ will be
avoided as far as possible, although it has to be used in its colloquial form
when dealing with the public, few of whom are aware of the detailed
differences.

There is a further current issue that does impact on demand - the fact that
many hackney carriages once properly licensed in an area with a driver
then undertake private hire work in other licensing areas, often many miles
from their home base. Such vehicles can have cost base advantages and
can appear to be available for immediate hire when they are not in fact
legally able to do so (eg with stickers saying ‘this vehicle can be hired
immediately’, which only applies within their licensing area).

In these terms at the present time, the main issue relates to companies
who have bases both in Portsmouth and in Havant. Since the last survey,
there has been a major change in the relationship between what are now
the two largest companies. Some of the impact has been Portsmouth based
vehicles ending up working in Havant on private hire circuits, although both
companies tend to have liveries in contrast to the current Havant hackney
carriage fleet which does not have any livery. Portsmouth hackney
carriages have now long had a silver livery making them clearly distinct
although the fleet is mixed between wheel chair accessible and saloons.

Review aims and objectives - national background

Havant Council is seeking a review of their current policy towards hackney
carriage quantity control in line with current Department for Transport
(DfT) Best Practice guidance as published in April 2010. Further
background information about previous policy is contained in Chapter 2 to
set the context of the current situation.

The “Best Practice Guidance” paragraph 47 states: “Most licensing
authorities do not impose quantity restrictions the Department regards that
as best practice. Where restrictions are imposed, the Department would
urge that the matter should be regularly reconsidered....”. Our database of
taxi regulation, updated to December 2015, shows 91 authorities who
openly declare a limit on hackney carriage vehicle numbers.

Page 37



There are other licensing authorities who restrict new plates to various
levels of wheelchair accessible vehicles and have various levels of
grandfather rights for the remaining saloon vehicles which are effectively
often limited in number albeit not in the terms of a formal limit under
Section 16 (as this is counted as quality restriction rather than quantity).

Of the 91 authorities in England and Wales with a formal limit on vehicle
numbers, four have never seemed to have any formal study of the limit. A
further 26 have tested their policy, but on an irregular basis (and not within
the last three years). Over two thirds (61 authorities) undertake a regular
review, all but three of which tend to undertake this more or less every
three years. Many of these authorities are very strict on their repeat cycle.

In recent years several authorities have determined to remove their limit
policy — most recently Exeter and Hastings. Others - most recently
Cambridge - have returned a limit. In some cases authorities returning a
limit set either a ‘settling limit’ eg Watford, or a limit beneath the current
level (Chesterfield), whilst others fixed at the level when the decision was
made (allowing for vehicles in the pipeline at the time of decision). Some
limited authorities (notably Knowsley) have set a new limit lower than the
current to take account of dormant licences at time of survey. Some
authorities still are found needing to issue plates (eg BANES). Other
authorities are currently considering if a limit needs to be re-applied in their
area given evidence that the market is not restricting numbers
appropriately. Other authorities do not apply a limit but use quality
controls, such as needing to put on a new wheel chair accessible vehicle,
to increase the entry costs and dissuade less committed applicants.

Current Havant requirements
Havant held the previous survey in 2013 and is repeating to meet the BPG
encouragement to repeat surveys every three years.

The key objectives of the independent study of demand are to:

- Determine whether there is any evidence of significant unmet demand
for hackney carriage services in Havant

- If significant unmet demand is found recommend how many licences
would be required to eliminate this

The study includes the following:

- Inception meeting

- Rank review

- Rank observations based on direct observations

- Public attitude interviews comprising face to face interviews
- Written consultation

- Report (draft and final)

Page 38



Methodology
In order to meet Havant Council’s objectives, the following methodology
was adopted:

Review of relevant policies, standards etc: to understand the authority’s
aspirations for meeting travel needs and social inclusion and provide
context to determining overall demand for travel and how this should be
met;

Extensive rank observations and audits of all the ranks in the Authority,
including monitoring passengers’ waiting time, any illegal plying for hire,
use of Hackney Carriages by wheelchair users and rank audits;

On street interviews: a survey of representative people on street to obtain
information about their understanding of the sector, their last taxi journey,
their overall levels of taxi use, about quality and barriers to use;

Consultation: including consultation with all relevant stakeholders - the
local authorities, police, trade associations, all drivers, mobility impaired,
specific user groups, businesses, and other major generators of taxi trips

In essence, the methodology used follows similar principles to all surveys
undertaken by CTS together with all developments of methodology more
recently applied to our surveys, particularly including guidance from both
the 2004 DfT letter and their 2010 Best Practice Guidance (which includes
the 2004 guidance as an appendix), and including the latest knowledge
arising from the Law Commission Review and the current status of the
Equality Act. This report also seeks to provide compatibility with previous
reports provided by other consultants to the Council. As the 2013 survey
was undertaken by CTS this latter compatibility is readily undertaken.
Some items undertaken in 2013 have not been repeated in 2016 to ensure
best value for money.

Report structure
This Report provides the following further chapters:

Chapter 2 - current background to taxi licensing statistics and policy
Chapter 3 - results from the rank surveys

Chapter 4 - results from the surveys undertaken with the public
Chapter 5 - up to date stakeholder consultation

Chapter 6 - results from consultation with the taxi licensing trade
Chapter 7 — summary and conclusions of this review

Chapter 8 - recommendations for policy arising from this review.

Page 39



Page 40



2.

Background to taxi licensing in Havant

The Havant Borough Council area

Havant Council is one of eleven councils within the county of Hampshire.
The Borough has a current population of 123,000 according to the 2016
estimates from the 2011 census. This is around 1% more than the level
reported in the 2013 survey for 2013 (121,444).

Havant Borough licensing area covers a mainly urban area with the principal
centre being Havant itself, although this area has several districts including
Leigh Park, West Leigh, Denvilles, Langstone and Bedhampton amongst
others. However, it also includes the large urban settlement of Emsworth
to the East, and a large urban agglomeration to the West of the A3(M)
including Waterlooville, Purbrook and Cowplain. Finally, the Borough
includes Hayling Island. The whole district covers some 30 square miles.

Portsmouth is a very close neighbour and is the key destination for the main
rail route which passes east-west through the Borough. At Havant the
Southern and South West Trains routes to London diverge. The through
Coastway route also passes through Havant providing links across to the
West Country.

In terms of rank provision, all ranks are provided by Hampshire County
Council which is the highway authority. However, none of these are used
and the only rank in use is the private station rank at Havant, operated by
South West Trains. This has a formal limit of 20 vehicles applied, although
any vehicle can have a permit as long as it is a Havant hackney carriage.
A bye-law was also identified defining all ranks in the area (see below).

Background Council policy

Havant does not have direct transport powers, these being held by the
County authority, Hampshire. The Borough has transport policies described
in the latest Hampshire Local Transport Plan. This document contains
details of the overall background policies both for environmental as well as
transport policy. The latest, third, Local Transport Plan (LTP3), covers the
fifteen-year period from 2011 to 2026, and operates using a three-year
implementation plan, the current of which covers 2013 to 2016 and was
last rolled forward on 6 May 2014. However, there appears to be little
change since 2013.

Each borough has its own Transport Statement covering its area within the

context of the LTP. The key LTP aim is to support the sustainable growth
and competitiveness of the local economy.

Page 41



The LTP provides the background that every day in Hampshire some
650,000 people travel to work, 200,000 travel to education, 3 of a million
shop and 13,500 arrive as tourists across the area. The LTP seeks to ensure
that all these people are able to reliably get to places, choose if, when and
how to travel, do so safely and as far as possible enjoy their journeys. In
developing Town Access Plans and District statements, the county and local
authorities work with a wide range of stakeholders. The overarching aim is
“safe, efficient and reliable ways to get around a prospering and sustainable
Hampshire”.

Across the county, Hampshire supports 17 taxi / car share schemes. This
is seen as providing a safety net for people. Travel planning is encouraged,
including use of taxis to complete journeys that would otherwise be
undertaken in full by car.

Havant is part of the South Hampshire area, where overall planning is
covered by Transport for South Hampshire (TfSH). Policy I “encourages
private investment in bus, taxi and community transport solutions”- the
measures done in support of taxi services include suitably located taxi
ranks, and delivery of station Travel Plans.

The Borough also has a Transport Statement (TS), adopted in September
2012, valid till 2026 but being regularly updated. This confirms that the
area is within the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and that the
statement draws together aims from the LEP as well as items from the
latest Local Development Framework (LDF). The main two developments
that will add to transport pressures in the area are those West of
Waterlooville and at Dunsbury Hill Farm. There is also an updated spatial
strategy for the South Hampshire area led by a partnership known as the
Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH). A sub-regional traffic
model is also available to test any changes or impact on the road
infrastructure (SRTM). The TS comments that some bus links have become
‘call and go’ whilst some are provided by taxi or community link options.
Station Travel Plans are being developed for Havant and Bedhampton
whilst improvements are planned for walking links between Havant railway
station and bus station. No specific taxi schemes are identified.

There is potential for future change in the area next year. The current South
West Trains franchise ends in June 2017, with the incumbent operator who
has been in place since 1996 currently preparing a competitive tender
against another operator with a decision to be made by the Department for
Transport and made public in February 2017. This could mean the process
for providing rank permits at Havant changes, dependent on the operator
chosen and their commitments in the franchise.

Page 42



Policy of restricting hackney carriage vehicle licences

Havant Borough Council has a power to restrict the number of hackney
carriage vehicle licences it grants when it is satisfied there is no unmet
demand for the services of hackney carriages which is deemed to be
significant. This power has been in this format since the introduction of the
1985 Transport Act, Section 16 (before which the power to limit was
unfettered). DfT statistics suggest there is no known date for the start of
this policy in Havant, but it has clearly been in place since at least 1994
when the statistics were first published.

At the present time, overall government taxi policy is under review by the
Law Commission (LC) (see Chapter 1, page 1 for more detail). The current
status is that the LC recommended that councils are able to retain the
option of limiting their number of hackney carriage vehicles, although any
change will have to be agreed by Government and then taken through any
appropriate legal process. Formal Government encouragement remains
towards the minimisation of restrictions, including limit policies.

This Report is undertaken within the context of these requirements. It also
cross references with previous survey data where comparison is possible.

There has been no change to rank provision in the area since the last report
in 2013 and no development of new ranks by Hampshire has occurred or is
even in the process of being considered.

Background statistics

Information was obtained to demonstrate the current make-up of the
licensed vehicle fleet in the Havant area, including current vehicle trends.
The table below shows the historic level of vehicle numbers in this area.

HCV PHV Total fleet Driver numbers | Operators
(% WAV) hcd | Phd | Dual
DfT data gives no date for start, at least 1994

1994D 35 unknown n/k 551 | O 0
1997D 35 377 412 0 0 550
1999D 35 468 503
2001D 35 510 545
2004D 35 445 480
2005D 40 (13) 426 466 0 0 589 50
2007D 40 (13) 426 466 0 0 589 50
2009D 40 (13) 419 459 0 0 548 55
2010N 40 438 478
2011D 40 (13) | 425 (8) 465 0 | 0 | 523 | 51
2012N 40 483 523
2013D 40 (18) 460 (5) 500 0 0 499 51
2013 (Aug) 40 507 547 0 0 505 53
2014N 40 510 550
2015 40 (20) 529 (5) 569 0 0 515 50
2016 (July) 40 597 637 0 0 637 58

Note: DFT statistics suggested used from 1994 to 2007, 2011/ 2013 and 2015 (D).
National Private Hire Association stats for 2010/12/14(N). Council figures for time of rank survey

Page 43




The Table above shows that the increase of five plates after the 2003 study
remains the only recorded plate increase in the area, which lifted vehicle
numbers by 14%. All hackney carriages tend to be owned and operated by
one person (see also below).

In terms of private hire vehicle numbers, which cannot be limited, there
has been steady growth since the last survey, with 58% growth since 1997
when the first DfT statistics were published.

For the total licensed vehicle fleet, growth from 1997 to date has been
some 55% overall, with the bulk of growth therefore on the private hire
side (but even when there was no limit). Since 1997 the proportion of
vehicles in the fleet which are hackney carriage has fallen to 6% from the
level of 9% then, two thirds of what it was.

Driver numbers are all for dual drivers so it is not easy to tell who are the
hackney carriage and who are private hire, or in fact who drive both
vehicles at different times. However, driver numbers have remained
consistent although there has been 16% growth since the last survey.

Operator numbers are now also 15% higher than the first number
published, and 9% more than at the time of the last survey. We were
advised that changes since the last survey have occurred with various
revisions to the private hire trade basically due to increased levels of
competition. Some hackney carriages are allied to some of the private hire
companies though most remain independent.

Driver ratios

At the present time there are exactly the same number of drivers and total
licensed vehicles. This suggests there is no double shifting at all in the area.

Private hire

We were advised that there has been significant change in the private hire
market in the area since 2013. An understanding between the two largest
companies came to an end. One operator bought out another so that their
market share increased and the area effectively had two large private hire
companies and the other very small independent operators, nearly all
undertaking niche markets and not generally visible across the area. Uber
has also registered in the area in January 2016.

Some of the effects of the competition between the top two companies has
at times seen Portsmouth based vehicles deployed in the Havant area,
albeit with local people not being easily able to tell which authorities vehicle
was serving them. The level of hackney carriages in the large private hire
operators is very small, three in one, and none in the other. Havant
hackney carriages would find it hard to work either in Portsmouth or
Chichester as both those authorities have specific hackney carriage vehicle
liveries.

Page 44



Since January 2016, a new policy no longer permits operators to licence
larger six or eight seater vehicles unless all seats can be accessed without
the need to lift or tip a seat to gain access. In some this can mean a vehicle
is plated for less seats than it actually has. The hackney carriages retain a
dress code for drivers, although it is felt this can be ‘pushed to the limit’
and there is also a feeling that the hackney carriage fleet tends to be
retaining vehicles longer, giving the fleet an older feel.

We were advised that some hackney carriages belong to private hire
circuits, but often work mainly on school contracts for them. At the time of
the survey, one hackney carriage plate had no vehicle in use though the
plate remained available for the owner to use were a vehicle to be obtained.
Licensing advised us that they were aware of one driver who very rarely
ever serviced the station, and that the trade had advised them that no
more than 35 or 36 vehicles had permits (though the train operator
confirmed 37 were on issue). The trade is also in a very good position in
terms of these permits as there is no limit on numbers available, they are
obtainable either via the Association or directly, and relate to the vehicle.
As long as extra drivers sigh an agreement, a vehicle can be used by more
than one driver without extra fee. All of these are very favourable
conditions compared to many other similar permit situations we have found
around the country at present.

Page 45



Page 46



Results from rank surveys

The Table below shows the result of our review of the ranks available in the
Havant licensing area from the previous report in 2013. The list was
produced from a bye-law listing, and has been updated to current. Although
we were aware that only the station was active, we undertook extended
observations at Leigh Park library rank which was felt to be the one that may

SE€e some use.

Rank /
operating hours

Spaces
(approx)

Comments

Havant ranks

Leigh Road 2 Opposite side from main station rank, TRO
reconfirmed 6/5/1994 and still marked - little
used, on current list

Market Parade 4+4 Two ranks, both in bus lay-bys, surveyed and
used in 2003, last section removed in
December 2012. May be possible to return a
rank into this road.
North Street near 4 Removed
Six Bells
West Street near n/a Possible location for new rank
St Faith’s Church
Bus Station, EIm n/a Possible location for new rank
Lane
Hayling Island ranks
Beachlands 3 Remains marked but little used
Ferry Boat Inn 4 Remains marked but little used

Creek Road 2 Remains marked but little used, original
buildings that provided use removed, not on
current list

Sea Front, 2 Though in bye-law and on current list, unable

Eaststoke Corner

to identify location

Waterlooville ranks

Rockville Drive Car 1 Marked but no TRO and not enforceable, little
Park used, but on current list
London Road 2 Surveyed in 2003 but lost when road became
bus only
Hambledon Road, n/a Possible location for new rank
near St George's
Church
Leigh Park ranks
Somborne Drive, 3 Eastern end of Greywells Pedestrian precinct,
West side in bye-law but no longer appears to exist,
was given TRO on 13 Jan 1995
Park Parade, South 2 Near Leigh Park library, still appears on

side

streetview, in bye-law, given TRO on 13 Jan
1995 - possible this location might be made
to work as active rank.

Page 47




Emsworth ranks

High Street or Nile n/a Possible new rank locations
Street
Private ranks
Havant railway 18 Only active rank identified - permit needed
station - all hours from rail operator
Emsworth railway 3 No longer marked - listed in Bye-law but on
station - all hours private land

Since 2013 there have been no moves to attempt to add new ranks or see
any of the above find any actual usage. The two chosen ranks were
observed, using video methods with the recordings observed by trained staff,
and analysed to provide details of the usage and waiting times for both
passengers and vehicles. Passenger waiting time was kept to that which was
true unmet demand, ie when passengers were waiting but no hackney
carriage vehicle was there. In 2013, 86 hours were observed but vehicles
were only seen in the 36 observed hours at Havant station. For 2016, we
covered 49.5 hours at Havant Station and 44.5 at Leigh Park Library

Full details of the observed volumes of passenger and vehicle traffic are
included in Appendix 1. Full observation of the total vehicle waiting time
was covered at Havant station. All vehicle movements at both ranks were
recorded to identify other uses of the space, and any potential abuse of the
ranks.

Overall comments on ranks

In total, some 741 different vehicle movements were noted at or around
these two ranks. At Leigh Park Library rank, no hackney carriages were
observed at all. During the two days, we saw 28 total vehicle movements,
of which 64% were private cars, 21% were delivery vehicles, 7% were
emergency vehicles and 7% - just two movements - were private hire
vehicles.

Given the tighter control of the station forecourt at Havant station, only
private hire and hackney carriage were observed there. 27% of the total
movements were private hire, principally dropping off passengers. The
remaining 73% of movements were hackney carriages utilising the rank.

Of these, 80% were saloon style whilst 20% were wheel chair accessible
style. We believe this was very similar to the level of these vehicles currently
within the fleet.

There were no wheel chair using passengers during the survey period. Two
people appeared to be disabled. 110 cases were seen of drivers helping
passengers into vehicles.

Detailed rank performance

The Table below summarises the time periods observed at each location as
well as providing overall operational statistics for each location during each
period of observation. A detailed description of the observations follows

below.
Page 48




kS =
n = [
5 |2 |&se| o |3 | 828
O, |9y |28 |8y | O e = E
58|28 e |28 w586
, w2 |82|eS|¥2 |08 829
Rank Period (2016) so o5 | 25 S5|Cgl mo®
08| 83| G0 2a|lcg Lol
— o | 20| wvwT | 20| 9 e 210
© —_o|wmo | ET| > ©.==F
S S &L | w 5 Swm ¢
|9 < Z <
Friday 24t June
10:30 to 05:00 348 | 264 1.3 20 7 59
Havant Station Saturday 25t June
(private) 05:00 to 05:00 318 1221114 119 18 | 6l
Sunday 26t June
05:00 to 12:00 4 131176 13 1
Leigh Park, Friday 24t June 0 0 0 0 0 n/a
Library Saturday 25% June 0 0 0 0 0 n/a

For each rank, we conclude with an overall qualitative appreciation of the
performance of the rank over the days observed:
- Poor - major issues with service to rank resulting in long passenger
queues;
- Fair - rank deals with high volumes but sees some passenger queueing
at times;
- Good - no passenger queueing observed but nothing else of note in way
rank operates;
- Excellent - very high turnover with no passenger queueing and clear
examples of drivers helping passengers use rank;
- Developing - rank of recent origin but clearly growing in use

Havant Station rank

This rank is on Network Rail land administered by South West Trains (SWT).
It requires a supplementary permit either via the local taxi association or
direct from SWT. It is understood that most, if not all, have a permit for this
rank as it is the only location served by hackney carriages regularly. At the
time of the survey one plate was not in use. The station rank was observed
from 10:30 on Friday 24t June 2016 through to 11:59 on Sunday 26 June
2016. This was about a week earlier than the observations undertaken in
2013, which were the first weekend of July that year.

Friday observations

During the Friday observations 348 passengers were observed leaving in 264
vehicles, giving vehicle occupancy of 1.3 persons per vehicle - low. 20
vehicles left empty (7%). This is higher patronage than in 2013 with lower
occupancy meaning more vehicles would be needed to service the demand.
Average passenger levels were 22 per active hour compared to 17 in 2013.

Page 49




59 passengers arrived when no vehicle was available for immediate hire.
Waits occurred in the 16:00, 17:00, 19:00, 20:00, 23:00 and midnight
hours. The worst waiting was in the 19:00 and 20:00 hours when 15 and 13
people respectively waited, with the longest wait in the first hour some 16
minutes, and 17 minutes in the second hour. The 16:00 hour saw a wait of
13 minutes. Other hours saw longest waits of three, five and eight minutes.
In summary, the average wait shared over all passengers was 1 minute 13
seconds, much higher than the average of 35 seconds for 2013.

In passenger terms, flows ranged from three up to 32 (in the 14:00 and
16:00 hours). Flows were over 23 in every hour from 14:00 through to
midnight apart from in the 22:00 hour. In 2013 there were only four hours
with over 20 passengers - in 2016 there were ten. Once the last train had
gone, the area saw no vehicles or passengers.

Average vehicle waiting times for fares reduced as the day progressed. The
first four hours saw waiting times from 27 to 48 minutes to get a fare. From
14:00 onwards this reduced as passenger levels rose. They increased again
for anyone servicing the last train with this being 45 minutes after the
previous departure.

Saturday observations

During the Saturday observations 318 passengers were observed leaving in
221 vehicles, giving vehicle occupancy of 1.4 persons per vehicle - low.
Although this is a similar level of usage to 2013, again vehicle occupancy is
reduced (from 1.7 in 2013). 19 vehicles left empty (8%), very similar to the
Friday.

A very similar number to Friday, 61 passengers had to wait for a vehicle to
arrive. This is also similar to the level identified in 2013 (57). People waited
inthe 12:00, 13:00, 15:00, 16:00, and in each hour from 22:00 to midnight.
Whilst many maximum waits were between four and nine minutes in any
hour, the 12:00 hour saw waits of up to 20 minutes and the 23:00 hour saw
26 waits of over 11 minutes, one group of three having to wait an hour for
a vehicle to collect them. Averaged over all passengers the typical waiting
time was just under four minutes - quite high. This is nearly four times the
average from 2013, and waits were in seven hours, not just four as in 2013.

In passenger terms, flows were very low until the 13:00 hour, 12 or less in
each hour. 16:00 and 17:00 were again quieter, just 13 in each hour, before
rising to the peak of 28 passengers in the 20:00 hour. Flows were 26 in each
of the 21:00, 23:00 and midnight hours. The 22:00 hour saw 19 passengers
providing sustained demand at this level or above from the 20:00 hour to
the midnight hour - in fact five of the busiest hours observed. There were
three passengers in the 02:00 hour, after which the area became quiet.
Average flows were 14 per hour, lower than the 16 found in 2013 but mainly
because the rank saw 22 hours operation and not 20. The level of passenger
flow was more intense however, with eight hours with over 20 passengers
compared to the four in 2013. Six of these were from 18:00 onwards.

Page 50



Average vehicle waiting times for fares were much more variable than on
the Friday, but clearly shorter in the busy five hour period. The 17:00 and
18:00 hours were particularly bad for vehicle waiting, with an observed
vehicle wait of 57 minutes in the first hour, and 32 minutes in the second
hour.

Sunday observations

During the Sunday observations (which covered only up to 11:59) just 14
passengers left in 13 vehicles, a very low occupancy of 1.1 per vehicle. Six
vehicles, 32% of those arriving, left empty. In the 09:00 hour one person
had to wait for a vehicle to arrive, but just for five minutes. Shared over all
passengers the typical wait was 21 seconds.

Passenger levels were very low, just one per hour for the 06:00, 07:00 and
08:00 hours. The highest flow was five in the 11:00 hour. Vehicles waited
frequently well over an hour for fares as might be expected from such low
flows.

Summary
Overall, service to this rank is fair.

Leigh Park, Library rank

This location was felt to be the most likely to see any hackney carriage
demand in the area. It was observed from 11:30 on Friday 24 June 2016
until 08:00 on the morning of Sunday 26 June. As noted above, over the
44.5 hours observed, there were just 28 vehicle movements, of which just
two were private hire vehicles. Just one of these private hires left the area
with two passengers, at 21:46 on the Friday. No hackney carriages were
observed at all. This suggests the rank is never used and has insufficient
demand to ever be used.

Comparison of overall supply and demand

The Table below provides a slightly different summary of supply and
demand, comparing average vehicle arrivals per hour with average loaded
departures per hour, ie seeing how supply and demand match on average.

4

Q T - o
% O o L C “—g

n O~ 0 =+
. 50>) > 0 98 859
Rank Period or | uwml O35 =
cg|l o> 2 2 59

© G = O = oo
Y [ _ © 'cs‘—’
o U5 0 Q S 2>
4 < < )

Friday 24t June
10:30 to 05:00

~
[y
9]
~
-
o
-
N

Havant Station Saturday 25t June )
(private) 05:00 to 05:00 22 | 11 10 Fair
Sunday 26t June 05:00
to 12:00 6 | 3 2

Page 51




Assuming the station rank became busy at the same time on the Friday
morning as on the Saturday (with the first trains in the 05:00 hour), this
rank tends to operate 21-22 hours all days apart from Sunday when the train
service begins in the 07:00 hour. The rank is generally related to train
services though the early hours of Sunday did see some departures after the
trains had ceased (unless one train was late, although the operator did not
suggest there was any evidence for this).

In terms of overall passenger demand at ranks per hour when operational,
Friday is overall much busier than the Saturday with almost twice the
average level of vehicles and passengers. Even then, demand is not high in
total. In terms of overall service, comparing the number of vehicles supplied
and the total number of loaded vehicles leaving (ie taking out the loading
factor), all three days see very close comparison of supply and demand. This
is based on averages which means that there is a very high likelihood of
queues forming if passengers arrive at the same time. This is very likely
given demand is dictated by train arrival times.

In 2013 there was clear spare capacity on the Saturday compared to the
Friday — explaining why 2016 saw much less ability to react to the sustained
late night Saturday demand. The general increase in demand, more so on
the Friday, and the length of the sustained demand on the Saturday, has
meant overall service levels appear to have reduced. The table above clearly
demonstrates this as does the increase in passenger waiting.

Summary of Total demand

The table below calculates a typical week from the observations undertaken
in 2016 and compares to information from the previous survey. Ranks or
pick-up locations are listed in descending order of passenger usage in 2003.

2 > E > .~
30 3 S0mz T EB
Rank 523 ¢ $20¢2 |82ax>
a5 3 253 | V3sY
a & a &
Havant Station 2152 1884 1815
Market Parade (both ranks) Gone n/a 259
Leigh Road, Havant Not Not used 28
Beachlands, Hayling Island surveyed 0 0
Ferry Boat Inn, Hayling Island 0 0
Eastern Beachlands, Hayling Island Removed 0
Creek Road, Hayling Island Not used 0
Hambledon Road, potential rank Waterlooville 0 n/a
London Road, Waterlooville Removed 0
Park Parade, Leigh Park Not used 0 n/a
High St / Nile St, potential rank, Emsworth Not there 0 n/a
Total 2152 (100) | 1884(100) | 2102(100)
Growth since previous +14% -10% n/a
Growth since 2003 +2% -10% n/a

Note - Total includes all observations at relevant points as available, both sets factored to full week from detail

Page 52

available.




Since 2013, there has been some 14% growth overall at ranks in Havant,
albeit only at the private station rank. The growth from the 2003 survey is
now around 2% compared to a decrease of 10% between 2003 and 2013.
The latest survey confirms that hackney carriages are totally dependent on
the rank at Havant station, as they were in 2013. There seems no likelihood
of any hackney carriage service other than at the station.

Plate activity levels

A sample of plate numbers were collected during the rank surveys to identify
the level of activity of the fleet during the survey. Observations covered
arrivals and departures from the station rank for a morning hour, an
afternoon hour and a late evening hour on each of Friday and Saturday. The
figures below are based on the full available licences of 40, although we were
aware that one plate had no vehicle at the time of the survey, and that two
other vehicles had no permit to pick up at the station (though they might
have been observed setting down passengers).

On the Friday, 62 vehicle movements were observed, 19% in the morning,
39% in the afternoon and 42% in the evening. During the observations 48%
of the fleet were observed. Of these, 21% were seen in all three periods,
21% morning and afternoon only, 26% afternoon and late evening only,
16% afternoon only and 5% just in the evening. In total, this gave fleet
activity levels of 53% morning, 84% afternoon and 63% late evening.

On the Saturday, 46 vehicle movements were observed, 22% in the
morning, 39% in the afternoon and 39% in the evening. During the
observations, 40% of the fleet were observed. Of these just one (6%) was
seen in all three periods, 19% morning only, 19% morning and afternoon,
19% afternoon only, 19% afternoon and evening, and 19% evening only. In
total, this gave fleet activity levels of 44% morning, 63% afternoon and 44%
evening.

Over both days, 53% of the fleet was seen. This suggests significant spare
capacity although it is not clear why nearly half the available vehicles are
not choosing to work on the two busiest days. This is a lower proportion even
than allowing for one vehicle not existing, and at least two others being
unable to wait at the station rank, and perhaps several others choosing not
to use their valid permit.

Comparing the activity profiles suggests that the expected busy periods from
our survey were Friday afternoon, Friday evening, Friday morning, Saturday
afternoon, and finally Saturday evening and morning. This suggests a
mismatch between the demand we observed and what the trade either
expect or prefer to work, leading to the issues on the Saturday night of high
levels of queueing by passengers.

In terms of average return times to the rank, based on those which returned
within the hour slots used, this was 22 minutes on the Friday and 23 minutes
on the Saturday. Further discussion of these statistics follows in the
synthesis chapter where other results are also drawn in to the discussion to
keep things in overall context.

Page 53



Application of the ISUD index

The industry standard index of significant unmet demand (ISUD) has been
used and developed since the initial Government guidance that limits could
only apply if there was no significant unmet demand for the service of
hackney carriage vehicles. Initially developed by a university, it was then
adopted by one of the consultant groups undertaking surveys, developed
further by them in the light of various court challenges, and most recently
adopted as an ‘industry standard’ test utilised by most current practitioners
of unmet demand studies.

The index is principally used to identify a statistical guide if observed unmet
demand is in fact significant. Early in the process of developing the index, a
cut-off point of 80 was identified beneath which no conclusion of unmet
demand being significant had been drawn, and over which all studies had
concluded there was significant unmet demand. This level has become
accepted as the guide. Once unmet demand has been identified as significant
it is usual for a calculation to be undertaken to identify the exact number of
new licences needed in order to reduce the significance of the unmet demand
below the threshold - although this cannot be an exact science in terms of
outcomes due to the high number of parameters involved in determining
where new licences actually end up working - there is no way to guarantee
that licences will focus on reducing the unmet demand at all.

The ISUD calculations draw from various elements of the work, reflecting
statistics which seek to capture components of ‘significant unmet demand’
although principal inputs are from the rank surveys, factored to produce a
typical week of observations based on the knowledge available to us.

The current index has two elements which can negate the need for use of
the index by setting the value to zero. The first test relates to if there are
any daytime hours (Monday to Friday 1000 to 1800) where people are
observed to queue for hackney carriages. Using the direct outputs from the
survey a value of 25% is estimated.

The other index that could be zero - proportion of passengers in hours in
which waits occurred which was over 1 minute - was 28%.

The seasonality index is 1.0 since the surveys were undertaken in June 2016.
The area does not exhibit peaked demand, so this factor is 1.0.

Average passenger delay in minutes across the whole survey is 0.35 minutes
(or 21 seconds).

From the public attitude work, the latent demand factor is 1.135 assuming
all who did not give an answer had not ever given up waiting.

The ISUD index is the multiple of all the above. Using detailed humbers (but
then rounding) the calculated value is 278. This is well beyond the accepted
cut off of 80 which suggests unmet demand to be significant. This result
takes on board both patent (measureable) and latent demand.

Page 54



However, there is a sensitivity test which can be undertaken with the
daytime hours calculation. This takes the opposite extreme assuming that
the two hours in the period observed were in fact the only two hours during
the 40 possible hours within a full week when people faced such waits for
vehicles. This reduces the 25% estimate to 5%, which in turn reduces the
ISUD estimate to 55.6, a good way beneath the cut-off value for the
observed unmet demand to be considered significant. The true ISUD value
will lie somewhere between these two points in the absence of any further
evidence.

This needs to be considered with other evidence to understand the right
course of action with plate numbers.

Comparison to previous studies

The ISUD index was used in the 2009 and 2013 studies. The Table below
shows the change in specific indices between years to give an indication of
the movement of the market between these two studies (where information
is available). The surveys were all undertaken at the same time of year, so
the seasonality index was 1.0 in all cases and has not been reported. There
will be some differences arising from the specific sample hours used but in
general an outline comparison is informative on the state of the hackney
carriage market in Havant over the last six years.

Element 2009 | 2013 | 2016
Average wait (mins) 0.8 0.35
Peak factor 1.0 1.0
% Queues in weekday 0 25
daytime hours
% pass in hours with waiting
over 1 minute 10 28
Latent demand 1.05 | 1.135
Overall index 0 278

The average wait for passengers overall has reduced. However, the level of
queueing in off peak periods has become non zero and relatively high, whilst
the percentage of passengers waiting in hours where the average queue is
over a minute has also increased, as has the latent demand factor.

Further discussion occurs below to make use of this information in the
decision regarding the significance or otherwise of unmet demand.

Page 55



Page 56



Public Consultation results

A seventeen question survey was undertaken with 200 persons in the Havant
Council area (300 were obtained in 2013 including four out of town samples,
only two of which were repeated this time). Surveys were undertaken on
Friday 24t June and Monday 27% June 2016 in the shopping areas of Havant,
Leigh Park and Emsworth. Responses were mainly from those available
during the day time, following standard practise for these interviews. The
Table in Appendix 2 summarises the overall responses.

63% of those interviewed had used a licensed vehicle in the Havant Council
area in the last three months, a high level of recent usage. This was much
higher than 2012 (18% with range of 13 to 26%). Havant saw the highest
usage at 75%, with Leigh Park just below average, 56% and Emsworth the
lowest at 46%.

Of the respondents who told us they had used a licensed vehicle recently, all
said how often they used a licensed vehicle. On average, there are 4.1
person trips by licensed vehicle per month based on these assumptions, a
high level. Again, Havant levels are above the average, Leigh Park just
below, and Emsworth much further below. Compared to 2013 these values
are also higher, the former range was 0.2 to 1.2 with an average of 0.95.

Interviewees told us how they obtained licensed vehicles in the Council area.
Some gave multiple answers. By far the highest percentage got taxis by
booking them by telephone (42%), followed by mobile or smart phone
(28%), with the total by phone methods being 70%. 29% said they got them
from ranks and 1% said their normal method was hailing (national average),
although only mentioned in Havant itself. Interestingly, the level of quoted
rank usage was fairly consistent across the areas, with the main difference
being more people used smart phones in Havant than elsewhere. Compared
to 2013, the level of booking of vehicles has reduced against an increase in
rank usage.

The use of phones was queried further, seeking to understand the companies
that people used. Across the full survey people suggested just six different
companies, three of whom only obtained 2.5% or less of the total 206
mentions given. The largest company has since 2013 bought out the smallest
of these three, and therefore in total obtained 55% of mentions, followed by
41%. This was generally consistent across areas though the largest company
was most dominant in Leigh Park. In terms of people giving more than one
company, only a small number in Havant named three companies. The level
naming two companies was between 10 and 31%. This suggests people tend
to be loyal to a single company, and that the area tends to be dominated by
just two companies. This is a further reduction in competition since 2013,
and has ended people mentioning non Havant companies. Just a few
appeared to use hackney carriage phone companies.

Page 57



A set of questions were then asked relating specifically to use of hackney
carriages. Nearly all of those questioned provided hackney carriage usage
frequencies. 6% said they could not remember when they had last seen a
hackney carriage in the area. 50% said they could not remember when they
last used one. Although this time everyone answered this question, the level
of non-use and lack of knowledge of hackney carriages appears to have
increased.

Overall, the number of trips per person per month from the stated
frequencies of use of hackney carriages was 0.4, or 10% of that quoted for
total licensed vehicles — lower than the quoted usage of vehicles from ranks.
While the overall level of usage of hackney carriages is higher than in 2013
using this statistic, the relationship between usage of the two types of
licensed vehicle has remained the same.

People were asked to name all the rank locations they were aware of in the
Council area and if they used the locations they named or not. Of the 206
different mentions given, there were 17 different names (some of which may
be the same location). 80% of mentions were of the station rank. 8%
mentioned Leigh Park in some format whilst Hayling Island saw 5% of
mentions. Of all those ranks quoted, 37% said they used the station rank
whilst 6% said they used various other ranks mainly split between Leigh Park
and Hayling Island. This does appear to be an increase since 2013, although
we suspect many of these other locations will be private hire picking up at
or near the ranks rather than hackney carriages. In any event, the level of
usage is very small.

When asked about new locations, the whole sample provided 31 responses.
The highest level sought a rank at Emsworth station (23%) which already
exists but is not used. Others suggested at supermarkets, which are all
generally private land. The level of suggestions is increased from 2013 but
covers similar locations. Again, it would not suggest high levels of potential
usage although nearly all those saying places they would want ranks said
they would use them.

In terms of problems with the local hackney carriages service there were
more responses this time even from less people. A total of 78 responses
were received. The highest issue was the cost of hackney carriages - quoted
by 47%. The next issue was delay getting (37%) although it is not totally
clear if this is all hackney carriages or a mix, given the lack of activity other
than at the Havant station rank.

The opposite question, in regard to what would make people use hackney
carriages more, as normal gained a higher response. The response was
consistent in that 59% said they would use them, or use them more, were
they to cost less. The next proportion, 17% was if there were more of them
at ranks or to hail. Better drivers and better located ranks each got 10% of
response. This is a change from 2013 in the move towards focus on cost,
and suggests it would be hard to increase hackney carriage usage levels to
any significant degree. This may also be increased given the more vigorous
activity of the two private hire companies since last time.

Page 58



People were asked if they or anyone they knew had a disability needing
either a wheel chair accessible licensed vehicle, or a vehicle adapted in some
other way. 93% said they did not need, nor were they aware of anyone, who
needed a disabled friendly vehicle. Of those needing a style of vehicle a
slightly higher proportion (about 4%) said WAV style with 3% saying other
style of vehicle. Emsworth respondents all said they had no need at all. The
level of need appears to be much lower in 2013, but closer to the typical
average for these surveys.

To clarify further, people were asked if they arrived at a rank and had a
choice of vehicle type, which they would choose. 91% said the first available
with just 4% saying the WAV style vehicle. Since 2013, this is an increase in
those saying they would take the first vehicle (71% said this in 2013 with
most saying if they chose a saloon it would be to leave the WAV for those
needing them). People were asked to clarify their choice, and most said their
focus was on convenience or not having to wait. Just 10% said they would
choose the saloon in fairness to those needing a WAV whilst 10% said they
chose the WAV as they needed its features.

Of those answering if they had ever given up waiting for a hackney carriage,
33 said they had, a high increase from 2013. Of these, 27 said they had
given up waiting at Havant station. This gives a latent demand index of
1.135, relatively high and much greater than three years ago.

People were asked if they would prefer all local hackney carriages to be more
distinctive by all being the same colour. 26% said yes whilst 64% said they
did not know.

77% lived in the area although Emsworth respondents only said 40% of them
lived in the area. Both values were similar to those in 2013.

Our gender sample saw a lower proportion of men (45% compared to 48%
in the 2016 census estimate). Our age sample saw high wunder-
representation of the older group (27% compared to 44%), some over-
representation of the middle group - 40% compared to 36% in the census,
with the younger group surveyed over-represented (34% compared to
20%). This is a generally representative sample but different in composition
to 2013.

Page 59



Page 60



5. Stakeholder Consultation

The following key stakeholders were contacted in line with the DfT Best
Practice Guidance 2010:

Supermarkets

Hotels

Hospital

Pubwatch / night clubs
Disability representatives
Police

Rail operators

Other council contacts
County council contacts

Specific comments have been aggregated below to provide an overall
appreciation of the current situation, although in some cases comments are
specific to the needs of a particular stakeholder. It should be noted that the
comments contained in this Chapter are the views of those consulted, and
not that of the authors of this Report. Appendix 3 provides further details
of those consulted. Information was obtained by telephone / email / letter
as appropriate. Contacts were made with a selection chosen from an
extensive list provided by the Council as well as by checking internet sources
for other contact details or more detailed references.

The licensed vehicle trade consultation is the subject of the following
chapter.

Supermarkets

Nine supermarkets were contacted. During the time available and following
several attempts, five responses were obtained. Four said their customers
used taxis, another (with a delivery service) said they thought their
customers never used them. Three had direct free phones to companies
whilst another would phone a company from their customer service desk if
asked. None were aware of ranks though one said the only one they were
aware of was at the station in Havant.

One had no issues. Two said the companies they phoned often provided
vehicles later than they said. One was particularly concerned about the
standard of driving within their car park, and had a near miss with a private
hire vehicle nearly knocking down a customer last year.

Hotels

Five hotels were contacted and during the time available four provided
response. All said their customers used ‘taxis’. Two would phone a company
for their customers. One would phone if asked but felt most customers made
their own calls. Another said customers generally made their own calls. Two
were aware of ranks, both stating Havant station but one also saying there
was a rank at Emsworth. One said they used one company and felt that was
effectively ‘rank’ provision for their area.

Page 61



Just one location had severe issues and wanted action to improve the poor
service they obtained, saying they found drivers generally rude and vehicles
late arriving.

Restaurants / Night venues
Five restaurants, an entertainment venue, nine pubs and one night venue
were contacted.

During the time available for response, one restaurant refused to provide
any comment and all four others never answered our requests for comment,
either by email or phone. The same was the case for the entertainment
venue.

Seven of the nine pubs contacted provided us a response. All said their
customers used local taxis. Four had direct contact phones which customers
used, one of which provided customers with a reference number and time
which increased confidence in getting a response. One said staff would phone
for customers if asked, another said customers called themselves whilst
another said customers generally called but they would make the call if
asked.

Just two said they were aware of the Havant station rank, but no others.
Two had issues with vehicles arriving late. Another had their direct phone
taken out as they always seemed to have customers waiting an hour. This
pub also felt drivers had no local knowledge nor did the drivers come in to
tell customers they had arrived. Even when customers waited outside, they
felt the drivers were rude not getting out to open doors for the customer to
get in. Another said they were rarely aware that vehicles had arrived since
the drivers never came in to announce themselves.

The night venue contacted did not respond.

Hospitals

The only hospital contact found was the NHS Diagnostic Centre, who told us
their customers used ‘taxis’ which they generally phone for on their behalf.
They were not aware of any ranks or any issues.

Police
No police response was obtained during the time available.

Disability and other representatives

No response was obtained from those representing people with disabilities.
A number of representatives of local associations were contacted,
particularly those who responded in 2013. Only three responded, two to say
the associations they represented no longer met and they themselves had
no comment. Another said a rank would still be helpful in Waterlooville and
that nothing had really changed since their 2013 comments.

Page 62



Other Council representatives (district and county)

No-one was available for response from the County contract section to advise
about use of vehicles on county education and social services contracts. A
highways representative from the joint Havant / East Hampshire parking and
enforcement team confirmed there had been no change in ranks and no
request for any further consideration of rank reviews since 2013.

Rail Operators

National statistics are publicly available showing the total number of entries
and exits at each rail station in the United Kingdom. These numbers are
calculated using ticket barrier and ticket issue information from ticket sales.
The Table below shows information from 1997/1998 to date (the last year
of data ending in March for the last year quoted, with information published
the December after this date). The figures after the station name show the
position in rank in terms of usage of English, Welsh and Scottish railway
stations, with the smallest usage being the 2,539t station and the highest
being 15t in the list (Waterloo, London). Within the Havant licensing area
there are four stations - Havant, Emsworth, Bedhampton and Warblington.
For 2016, we have only compared rail growth for the main Havant station,
which is currently the 239% largest station in the terms of this data collection.

Rail year (ends March in Entries / exits Growth / decline
last year noted)
Havant (SWT) (239th)

1997 / 1998 1,447,312 n/a
1998 / 1999 1,502,539 +4%
1999 / 2000 1,622,322 +8%
2000 / 2001 1,700,799 +5%
2001 / 2002 1,771,919 +4%
2002 / 2003 1,830,202 +3%
2004 / 2005 1,911,821 +4%
2005 / 2006 1,943,917 +2%
2006 / 2007 1,918,386 -1%
2007 /2008 1,995,906 +4%
2008 / 2009 2,184,698 +9%
2009 / 2010 2,124,274 -3%
2010/ 2011 2,153,160 +1%
2011 / 2012 2,045,494 -5%
2012 / 2013 2,152,396 +5%
2013 /2014 2,203,114 +2%
2014 / 2015 2,351,802 +7%
1997/1998 to 2014/5 +62%
2011/2 to 2014/5 Last three years +15%

Since data began collection, rail patronage at Havant has increased 62%,
compared to overall national growth in the same period of 126%. The last
data available suggests over 2.35 million passengers enter or leave the
station per year. Growth since the last survey has been in the order of 15%.
This is very similar to the level of observed growth in our survey of ranks.

Page 63



The internet-based Train Taxi guide correctly states that Havant is a major
station with taxis usually available on a rank. Advance booking ‘is not
normally necessary or even possible’. Three private hire operator numbers
are given, but none claim wheel chair accessible vehicles.

The same set of companies are recommended for both Warblington (the
2075 largest station, 34,040 entries/exits in the last available year) and
Bedhampton (15415t largest, 136,952), neither of which are advised to have
ranks or offices. Warblington is operated by Southern whilst Bedhampton is
under the auspices of South West Trains similarly to Havant.

Emsworth is the second largest station in the area, but 1013% overall in the
rail patronage list with 390,052. Two private hire companies are
recommended, none having wheel chair accessible vehicles advertised, with
suggestion people should alternatively use Havant station. Emsworth is the
location where there used to be a rank, and where some would like a station
rank, and is operated by Southern train operating company.

As in 2013, both rail operating companies responded. South West Trains
administer permits from their Retail Standards Department centrally. The
2016 policy is exactly the same as in 2013. They confirmed there were 37
current permits (although the trade advised the licensing department there
were five or six without permits, i.e. 34 or 35 on issue). Permits relate to a
vehicle, although each driver using the vehicle also has to sign and return a
Driver Acknowledgment Form. Permits not in use can be returned and a
refund estimated. We were advised there remains an Association rate and
an individual rate available. The operator was not aware of specific issues
and advised us the only known event was London Pride on the Saturday of
the survey.

Southern also responded re their two stations but in the time available could
not provide further detail.

Page 64



Licensed Vehicle Trade Consultation

Trade consultation

As in 2013, trade consultation was undertaken by issue of a letter and
questionnaire by post (sent on our behalf by the Council). Unlike 2013 when
all responses had to be posted back to our freepost address, in 2016 people
had the option to complete the questionnaire on-line either on a wide range
of electronic platforms (mobile, tablet or computer). A total of 39 hackney
carriage proprietors and 59 private hire operators were sent copies, all being
asked to pass to drivers if any vehicle had other drivers using that vehicle.
This was a total of one less hackney carriage but two more private hire letters
than in 2013.

A total of 20 responses were received, just one less than in 2013. 30% were
returned using the electronic portal. 55% were from those saying they drove
hackney carriages (77% in 2013), whilst 5% (one person) said they drove
both private hire and hackney carriage vehicles (similar to 2013). The private
hire response was just over double (at 40%).

85% said they owned their own vehicle (slightly reduced from 90% in 2013)
whilst a slightly higher 20% said that someone else also drove their vehicle
(just 14% in 2013). Four hackney carriages said they were on a radio circuit,
three on the Havant Cabs network and one on another. None of the private
hire said they were part of any larger company. This appears different to
2013 when there was a more even split between companies.

All hackney carriages said they used the Havant station rank - with one
driver advising us this was the only viable rank but that it was not provided
by the Council but private with a high additional cost of usage.

The experience within the trade saw an average length of service of 15 years
with a range of four to 40 years. This was similar to that in 2013.

People said they worked between three and seven days with the highest
proportion evenly between six and seven days (30% for each). Hours worked
were between 12 and 92 with the average being 54 hours - quite high
averages and maximum levels. These levels are similar to those in 2013,
with a very slight reduction in the average and maximum hours quoted, but
an increase from 19% for those working seven days.

In this survey, drivers were asked what issues affected their choice of shift.
54% said they worked when demand was highest. 31% said their work hours
were tailored around family commitments. 8% said they focussed on
sociable hours only, whilst 8% said their taxi working hours were affected
by other work commitments.

Drivers also told us how they got fares, giving multiple responses in many

cases. Of the 53 responses received, 28% were phone, 23% rank, 18%
hailing and 15% each for school or other contracts.

Page 65



84% said the limit policy should remain (a slight reduction from the 90% in
2013). However, were the limit to be increased or removed 71% said they
would continue as normal. 12% said they would leave the trade - a much
lower level than in 2013. One person said they would leave if any change
reduced their income whilst another said they would work longer hours.
Compared to 2013 there was no voice suggesting any strong support for
deregulation.

Drivers were also asked how they thought having the limit currently
benefitted the public. Not many responses were received, with 50% of those
responding said it ensured vehicles were always at ranks. One (17%) said it
delivered a better service, another said better drivers and another that it
kept issues of public safety to a minimum.

In terms of if drivers felt the public would prefer hackney carriage vehicles
to be the same colour, 90% responded. Of these, 44% felt they would prefer
this, 33% said they would not, and 22% did not have any opinion.

Only one additional comment was provided, essentially advising us that
many phone bookings in the area were made in vehicles from private hire
companies based outside the area, with two companies dominating.
Compared to 2013 there were no comments about extra ranks being needed

Page 66



Summary and conclusions

Policy Background

The policy background is set at high level by the Local Transport Plan of the
county of Hampshire, focussed down to district level with a Transport
Statement for the Havant area. Taxi / car share is encouraged across the
County together with travel planning including use of ‘taxis’ to reduce
journeys otherwise made fully by car. Transport for South Hampshire also
encourages provision of taxi ranks and in particular inclusion of taxis within
Station Travel Planning, which are under preparation for both Havant and
Bedhampton. The documents also note many bus links are becoming ‘call
and go’ and many are now provided by either community or ‘taxi’ based
options.

Havant has restricted hackney carriage vehicle numbers since at least 1994
and currently reviews this policy every three years in accordance with the
DfT Best Practise Guidance of April 2010.

Statistical Background

Havant, one of the eleven councils within the county of Hampshire presently
has a population of 123,000. It is a multi-centred urban area with a range of
district centres and urban agglomeration plus Hayling Island. It is very close
to Portsmouth. Hackney carriage plates were increased in 2004 following the
survey the previous year. This increased their level by 14%. Since 1997,
private hire has increased 58% since 1997. This implies a reduction in the
proportion of the fleet which are hackney carriage from 9% in 1997 to 6%
now.

We understand that most hackney carriages are owned and operated by one
person. A very small humber are linked to the private hire companies in the
area. Driver statistics confirm there is minimal double shifting of any vehicle
in the area. This is despite there being a very low limit on vehicle numbers.
About 20% of these hackney carriage vehicles are wheel chair accessible.
We were advised that one hackney carriage plate did not have any active
vehicle at the time of the survey. Further, two other plates did not have a
current station permit, and the trade / licensing believed that two or three
others did not currently service the station rank.

Since the 2013 survey there has been significant change in the private hire
industry, meaning there are now two large private hire companies plus the
many other small independent operators. This has increased the level of
competition in the area, although the hackney carriages continue to enjoy
significant access to Havant station rank at very favourable conditions,
particularly compared to other areas / stations we are aware of.

Page 67



Rank Survey results

There has been no review or change in ranks since the 2013 survey. In
effect, the only active rank in the area is now the Havant Station rank. For
this survey, opportunity was taken to observe the rank most likely to see
any use for an extended period, but no activity was identified, with very little
other than private cars using the location. Over two days there were just two
private hire vehicles using the location.

Havant station forecourt is only accessible to hackney carriage and private
hire, with the latter only being allowed to drop off or collect pre-booked
passengers. This very effectively restrains any other vehicles from the area,
so our observations saw 73% of movements being the hackney carriages
servicing the rank with the other 27% being private hire principally setting
down passengers. From our national knowledge, the restrictions on the
permits for the station are very favourable. For example, whilst each vehicle
has to have its own permit, drivers could be added by simply completion of
an agreement without charge, and there are also two ways by which permits
can be obtained.

Of the hackney carriages, 20% were wheel chair accessible style, the same
proportion as that within the current fleet.

Although we are not aware of any other rank in the area seeing usage by
hackney carriages on a regular — or even sporadic - basis, we were advised
one hackney carriage plate had no vehicle during our survey, and that
between two and five others either did not have permits for that rank or
were not using them actively. This suggests some 15% of the small hackney
carriage fleet are principally operating on private bookings or contracts
exclusively.

The rank observations found around 60 passengers having to wait for
vehicles to arrive on both the Friday and Saturday of the observations. Whilst
in general Saturday flows were lower than Friday, the late Saturday ‘peak’
covered a significant and sustained five hour period. The level of passenger
flow saw eight hours on the Saturday with over 20 passengers, twice as
many hours as in 2013. Further, over both days, passenger occupancy levels
had dropped from around 1.7/1.8 to 1.3/1.4. Unusually for a station rank,
estimated weekly passenger demand had increased by the same amount as
shown in the national rail passenger statistics. This further supports the very
favourable circumstances in which the hackney carriages are able to operate
at Havant station.

This increase in demand, allied with the reduction in average occupancy, has
conspired to reduce service levels and increase the amount of passenger
waiting for vehicles to arrive. Notwithstanding this, overall demand levels
are not high, with an estimated 2,152 passengers per week. Using the lower
average occupancy of 1.3 and 40 vehicles, this equates to just over 40
journeys per vehicle per week from the station.

Page 68



Reviews of plate activity on both survey days found 48% out on the Friday
and 40% on the Saturday, with variation through the day. The net figure
was 53% of the fleet of 40 active. If the inactive plate is taken out of the
equation, this level rises to 54%. If the worst case is taken of six plates not
being active at the station, the 21 we observed is still just 61% of the
available fleet.

Our review of activity levels suggested a mismatch between observed high
levels of demand and supply, particularly focussed on less vehicles being
available to meet the sustained Saturday night increased demand. This may
have been exacerbated by the otherwise lower demand levels during
Saturday daytime meaning drivers would have to consider coming out just
to serve the Saturday evening.

Observations suggested that return to rank times were 22-23 minutes on
both days, although the Saturday evening observation found this had
reduced to 18 minutes. This also identified there were around six or seven
vehicles servicing the rank at that time, with one either completing its service
in that hour or ending up on a longer trip. Interestingly, the level of repeat
visits in this hour was the highest within our surveyed periods, with two
vehicles making four return trips, and one other making three.

Our evaluation using the industry standard ISUD index found that average
passenger waits had reduced. However, all other elements of the index had
worsened since 2013. A key factor was that queues were now observed in
weekday daytime hours, whilst the proportion of passengers waiting over a
minute had also gone up significantly — mainly driven by the increased length
of the Saturday night demand observed. Latent demand had also increased
- an outcome from the extra waiting people were experiencing.

Using our direct survey data, the ISUD index is well above the cut-off that
denotes the unmet demand is significant (278 compared to 80). However, a
sensitivity test on the daytime queueing reduced the level to 55.6, well below
the cut-off. This suggests that issue of further plates would not be prudent
at this time, but that significant action is needed to maintain customer
service and safety. Further discussion of this is provided below in the
synthesis section and then within recommendations.

Public Consultation

200 members of the public were interviewed including some in two of the
non central locations. Recent usage of licensed vehicles was high at 63%
and increased from 2013. Usage was highest for the Havant sample. The
corresponding levels of usage were just over 4 trips per person per month.
A similar value for hackney carriages only was just 0.4 trips, a tenth of that
for the overall licensed vehicle fleet. 70% of respondents obtained licensed
vehicles by various phone methods. 29% said ranks and 1% hailed.
Interestingly the level of rank use appears higher than in 2013.

Pags 69



In terms of companies phoned, two companies dominated, with one with
55% of mentions. Just 4% were mentions of other than the top two
companies, though many still used the two names of the company which
recently merged. Levels of mention of more than one company suggested
very high loyalty to companies. There was some mention of hackney carriage
phone numbers, but very minor.

Just 6% could not remember seeing a hackney carriage in the area although
50% could not remember when they had last used one. These are higher
figures in both cases than in 2013. In terms of rank knowledge, 80% named
the station whilst both Leigh Park and Hayling Island were both known of,
and 6% said they used one or other of these. The most dominant response
for a new rank was for Emsworth station.

In terms of issues with the hackney carriage service, as is typical around the
country, the dominant response was their cost to use. This was also the
highest reason which might increase usage. This may have been a side effect
of the high competition in the private hire market since 2013 which often
focusses on price. People were clearly much more sensitive to this issue and
difference in this survey.

Just 7% said either they or someone they knew needed an adapted hackney
carriage vehicle, much lower than in 2013. A much higher proportion now
said at a rank they would take the first available vehicle, with a high
reduction in those saying they would leave the wheel chair style for someone
who needed it.

The level of those saying they had given up waiting for a hackney carriage
was much higher at 13.5 % than in 2013, most of whom had given up waiting
at Havant station.

Just 26% said they would prefer hackney carriages to have a livery, with the
highest proportion, 64% saying they did not know. The proportion living
locally was similar to 2013, though the overall age / gender structure of the
sample was different to 2013.

Stakeholder Consultation

Stakeholder results mainly focussed on users obtaining private hire vehicles
although most said the only rank was at Havant station when asked. Many
obtained a good service with the only issues mentioned being late arrival of
phoned for vehicles. Many had direct phones although one had removed
theirs due to poor service.

Compared to 2013 it proved much harder to obtain responses from key
stakeholders beyond the larger groups. A key factor was that many voluntary
groups had ceased to meet or exist. The highway contact was very helpful
but confirmed there had been no request to undertake any rank review
particularly given the pressures on resources at the current time and the
view that little change was likely in levels of usage.

Page 70



There were no specific concerns from the two rail operators and one provided
significant input about the permit system which was very helpful. National
rail statistics unusually matched the observed growth in usage of hackney
carriages at the station. This is untypical and seems to reflect the relatively
advantageous operating conditions available to the hackney carriages at
Havant station. Even very well performing local authorities, with significant
growth in hackney carriage usage overall had not matched growth at their
stations with the national statistics level.

No wheel chair customers were observed accessing hackney carriages at
ranks during the survey. 110 cases of drivers assisting passengers were
observed.

Trade Consultation

The trade consultation enjoyed a similar level of response to 2013. The
private hire response was higher however in this survey. Most of the private
hire responses were from smaller individuals. There appeared to be an
increase in people saying someone else also drove their vehicle. Just four
hackney carriages were on a radio network, three of whom were on the same
hackney carriage only network.

Most operating details were very similar to 2013, with high average working
levels of 54 hours and 60% saying they worked either six or seven days.
54% said they worked when demand was highest. From the responses, 28%
of work tended to be phone, 23% rank, 18% hailing and 30% evenly split
between contracts.

There was a slightly reduced level of trade saying the limit should be retained
but overall this remained a high proportion - 84%. Fewer said they would
leave the trade if the limit was amended. On the contrary, the stronger
support for deregulation identified in 2013 had now gone.

In terms of having a livery, 44% said they would prefer this but 33% of the
trade would not.

Synthesis and Conclusions

Unlike many other places in the country we have recently studies, Havant
has seen a growth in usage of hackney carriages over the last few years.
Almost uniquely (but related to the fact the station is the only active rank)
the level of growth matches that from the level of growth in demand at the
station available from national statistics. Even where other authorities have
seen general growth, it is rare for actual observed demand growth to match
that from the station statistics. This confirms and strengthens the very
privileged position the Havant station hackney carriages are in at this time.
We acknowledge there is a key decision point coming when the renewal of
the rail operator contract occurs - this could result in significant change to
the rank option particularly if the operator changes as many of the benefits
pertain to the rank being operated by the current rail operator who takes a
very encouraging and favourable attitude to hackney carriages at Havant.

Page 71



However, there is a current issue which needs addressing. Over recent years
passenger growth has been matched with reduction in the occupancy of
vehicles, meaning that even more departures are needed to meet the
observed level of demand. A further complication found in our survey was
that the Saturday evening peak is now much more extended than it was,
and even more different to the daytime Saturday flows. Whilst none of this
should be an issue for the current humber of vehicles, even allowing for six
not actually servicing the demand, our surveys found unmet demand. This
occurred both during weekday hours (albeit on the Friday) and during the
Saturday evenings. The industry standard estimation tool, the ISUD index,
identified that based on the direct survey results, this was strongly
significant. A sensitivity test found a value below the cut-off.

Given all the factors involved, there is a very clear need to address this issue
to ensure that passengers obtain the service they deserve at all times at the
station. The Saturday late night issue had been identified and put forward
for action in our previous survey - but current evidence is that any action
taken has at least not reacted to the further changes in demand since that
time - or possibly there was no action taken. The increase in the latent
demand statistic confirms that passengers are now more aware of the
potential for having to wait for a vehicle to arrive than three years ago.

Our evidence suggests that there is no need for further plates to be issued
were the trade to work closely together to ensure observed demand was met
by supply. Whatever action is taken, the trade need to find a corporate way
of recording their response and its results. This could be as simple as some
form of on-line or otherwise recorded log of which plates were available to
service the station at what times. Some record of calling in extra vehicles to
meet demand and prevent passengers having to wait would also be
preferable.

The privilege and strong opportunity of the present favourable situation must
be honoured and taken advantage of. This advantage remains despite very
strong competition in the private hire market in the area in the last three
years, albeit with merger rather than new entrants. This is urgent although
we acknowledge that the change of rail franchise might mean any reaction
might be too late. The only encouragement is that the current franchisee
feels the service provided is good. We believe that a further five plates need
to be at least on stand-by during the observed peak weekday periods and at
least on Saturday nights through the busiest parts of the year.

A review should be undertaken of these key times, and the overall situation,
once the result of the rail franchise competition is known, by the end of
February 2017.

The committee need to reserve the right to either issue further hackney
carriage plates, or review if the limit remains valid for this area, were no
improvement to be found during Summer 2018 were there no significant
change to the rank arrangements.

Page 72



We would point out that, were an alternative arrangement to be agreed by
the rail franchisee, up to 40 hackney carriage vehicles could suddenly find
themselves without steady work, given that service to other ranks is
effectively non-existent (though we understand that many hackney carriages
have developed niche markets which tend to remove them from such
dependence on station demand. This could have a significant highway impact
were most vehicles to begin attempting to use the other ranks. However, at
this point, there would be no readily observable demand for hackney
carriages, and again a case might be made that removal of the limit may
well open up better opportunity for service to such locations with fresh blood
or those with different experience that might wish to develop such service.
We would not recommend this option be considered until the future of the
franchise was known.

Page 73



Page 74



Recommendations

Limits on the number of hackney carriage vehicles

There is evidence of unmet demand for hackney carriages both patent and
latent which is significant at this point in time in the Havant area. However,
tests of availability of vehicles suggest plenty of spare capacity within the
small hackney carriage fleet which it would be preferable to be used rather
than the issue of the five extra plates which would otherwise be suggested
by the statistics. Further recommendations follow below.

Rank provision

There is no evidence at the present time that any review of ranks across the
area would have any benefit. Potential levels of demand are so low that they
are best and currently met by private hire vehicles. Rank development would
only be necessary in an environment where there was no longer any limit on
hackney carriage vehicle numbers, and would probably need the introduction
of a livery to ensure people knew which vehicles they could get from ranks
or hail legitimately.

Future review of hackney carriage demand

The Council should ensure that record is kept that, unless legislation or
guidance changes, the next review of unmet demand ensures that fresh rank
surveys are undertaken no later than June 2019 with relevant accompanying
research by an independent review body.

However, we would strongly recommend that the licensing officer brings a
report to the Committee as early as possible after the result of the rail
franchise is known in February 2017, together with any results from the
discussion with the hackney carriage trade regarding the reaction to the
observed survey results at the station.

Trade development opportunities

The moderately sized hackney carriage owner and driver community must
work together to identify a practicable, deliverable and documented way by
which they can improve passenger service at Havant station particularly at
the times demonstrated in the data collected for the survey.

It would be prudent for the trade at the same time to consider if they felt
there were any options for developing business at the other ranks within the
Council area, and to identify their plans going forward were the station
contract to be significantly modified.

Page 75



Page 76



Appendix 1 — Detailed Video Observation Hours

Location

Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Hdvant Stn
-Apvant Stn
®@avant Stn
Pdvant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant
Stn

Date

24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
24/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016

24/06/2016

JNOH

S|BALLIY S[2IYIA 4O ON

10
11
16
16
21
26
25
21
17
22
25
15
20
16

sainuedaq J98uassed |e10]

13
16
16
32
23
32
28
26
25
28
23
17
29
25
12

sainyedaq adIyap papeo]

12
11
13
20
21
24
20
21
19
22
22
14
22
15

Aduednddo 3pi1yan asesany

1.5
1.2
1.6
11
13
14
1.2
13
13

1.2
13
1.7
2.4

285 348 264 1.3

sainuedaq apiyaa Ardw3

PO FRPPFPOOFRNPMAMNOOK WODO

Aydwa Suineaj sapd1yan jo %

sainyedaq apIya €10l

12
14
14
20
21
26
24
23
20
22
22
15
23
15
9

1

awi] Suuepn adIyYap asSesany

00:44:34
00:47:48
00:31:32
00:26:22
00:14:07
00:16:00
00:05:09
00:06:28
00:10:31
00:02:35
00:00:32
00:11:38
00:13:20
00:03:45
00:05:30
00:16:22

00:18:30

43

(a4ey
e J0j) swi] Suinepn adIYaA aSesany

00:44:34
00:48:33
00:31:46
00:26:52
00:14:07
00:15:57
00:05:32
00:06:19
00:10:50
00:02:41
00:00:32
00:11:22
00:13:20
00:03:47
00:05:30
00:20:00

(oaey
e 10J) dwi] Suniepn SPIYIA wnwixen

01:59:00
01:34:00
00:51:00
00:48:00
00:28:00
00:26:00
00:13:00
00:23:00
00:20:00
00:08:00
00:02:00
00:24:00
00:29:00
00:09:00
00:15:00
00:27:00

JNOH
ul dwi] Suiepn 198uassed aSesany

00:01:17
00:00:30

00:04:52
00:06:32

00:00:55
00:01:41

00:01:13

Ajuo Sunjem asoyy
‘awi] Sunepn JaSuassed aSelany

00:05:30
00:01:51

00:10:04

00:11:04

00:03:22
00:05:30

suiw G-T Suiiem ajdoad jo Jaquiny

suiw 0T-9 Suniem ajdoad jo JaquinN

aJow Jo suiw TT Suiiem Jaquiny

59

aw} yem Ja8uassed wnwixen

00:13:00
00:03:00

00:16:00

00:17:00

00:05:00
00:08:00



Location

Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
gvant Stn
Ervant Stn
@avant Stn
%vant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant
Stn

Date

25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
25/06/2016
26/06/2016
26/06/2016
26/06/2016
26/06/2016
26/06/2016

25/06/2016

JNOH

s g
§ 2 ¢
e & 2
5 % ®
> g 8
s 8§
= & £
g 8
3 3 2
1 3 2
4 3 3
2 1 1
5 2 2
4 12 7
12 9 7
7 12 10
19 21 14
13 18 11
12 26 18
18 13 11
13 13 9
17 23 21
16 22 16
22 28 20
15 26 15
17 19 16
17 26 17
14 26 11
7 9 7
1 3 1
0
1 0
240 318 221

Aduednddo api1yan asesany

14

sainedaq spiyaa Axdw3

P P ONOONOMNRKEFDNDNOORF OONRFEROPREP OO P

Adwa Suines| sa]dIYan Jo %

sainjiedaq apIyap €10l

O 00NN WNW

RPN R NR R R R R R
NN WERL Rk NN DO

awi] Suniepn apIyaA aSesany

00:29:00
00:12:00
00:17:30
00:44:30
00:34:24
00:12:15
00:24:10
00:11:51
00:06:00
00:24:55
00:11:30
00:22:00
00:34:36
00:13:14
00:06:15
00:06:43
00:18:08
00:06:24
00:05:56
00:08:47
00:25:25
02:03:00

01:57:00

44

(a4ey e u0y)
awi] Suniepn 321y 98esany

00:29:00
00:12:00
00:08:20
00:44:30
00:31:45
00:12:15
00:27:36
00:11:51
00:06:00
00:25:50
00:11:30
00:21:03
00:37:30
00:12:00
00:06:08
00:06:36
00:17:30
00:05:41
00:05:56
00:08:47
00:15:45

(o4e} € 20)) WL
Suniep apdIYIA Wnwixe

00:46:00
00:12:00
00:18:00
00:49:00
00:48:00
00:32:00
00:42:00
00:37:00
00:20:00
00:44:00
00:34:00
00:49:00
00:57:00
00:32:00
00:15:00
00:11:00
00:32:00
00:15:00
00:15:00
00:28:00
00:32:00

JNOH ul 3w
Suniepn 198uassed aSesany

00:04:49
00:00:35

00:00:22
00:02:45

00:00:47
00:25:20
00:02:23

00:03:55

Ajuo Suniem asoys ‘awi)
Sunuem 198uassed aSesany

00:11:42
00:02:30

00:02:30
00:04:42

00:03:45
00:35:28
00:06:12

S-T 8unyiem ajdoad jo JaquinN

-9 Suiyiem ajdoad jo sJaquinN

Jo suiw TT Suiiem JaquinN

26

61

awil yem Ja8uassed wnwixelp

00:20:00
00:04:00

00:04:00
00:09:00

00:09:00
01:00:00
00:07:00



Maximum passenger wait time

Number waiting 11 mins or more
Number of people waiting 6-10 mins

Number of people waiting 1-5 mins

Average Passenger Waiting Time,
those waiting only

Average Passenger Waiting Time in
Hour

Maximum Vehicle Waiting Time (for a
fare)

Average Vehicle Waiting Time (for a
fare)

Average Vehicle Waiting Time

Total Vehicle Departures

% of vehicles leaving empty

Empty Vehicle Departures

Average vehicle occupancy
Loaded Vehicle Departures
Total Passenger Departures

No of Vehicle Arrivals

Hour

Date

Location

5
6
7
8

26/06/2016

Havant Stn
Havant Stn
Havant Stn

HMvant Stn

01:06:00 01:06:00 01:38:00
01:13:00 01:13:00 01:13:00
00:54:12 00:47:00 00:51:00

2
1

50%

1
0
0
2

26/06/2016

0%

1

26/06/2016

00:05:00

0 0
0 0

0
1

00:24:20 00:24:20 00:35:00 00:01:15 00:05:00
01:18:50 01:20:15 01:34:00

00:12:00

1
6
2
7

0%
33%

0%
43%

5
3

26/06/2016

Bavantstn  26/06/2016 9

@avant Stn

0
3

6

10
11

26/06/2016

1.2

26/06/2016

QQ-Iavant

Mdvant Stn

00:00:21

32% 19

14 13 11 6

18

26/06/2016

Stn

543

8%

543 680 498 1.4 45

All

All

45



Page 80

46



Appendix 2 Public on street survey results

Q1. Have you used a Taxi in the last 3 months in the Havant area? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
YES 75 75.00% | 28 56.00% | 23 | 46.00% | 126 | 63.00%
NO 25 25.00% [ 22 44.00% | 27 | 54.00% | 74 | 37.00%
Total 100 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 200 | 100.00%
Q2. How often do you use a Taxi within the Havant area? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
ALMOST DAILY 17 17.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 17 8.50%
ONCE A WEEK 20 20.00% 4 8.00% 3 6.00% 27 | 13.50%
A FEW TIMES A WEEK 14 14.00% 7 14.00% 7 | 14.00% | 28 | 14.00%
ONCE A MONTH 13 13.00% | 14 28.00% 8 | 16.00% | 35 | 17.50%
LESS THAN ONCE A MONTH 36 36.00% | 25 50.00% | 32| 64.00% | 93 | 46.50%
Total 100 | 100.00% [ 50 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 200 | 100.00%
0
, Almost daily 20
Once a week 4
Q0 | A few times a month 2
T | Once a month 1
Less than once a month 0.5
Resulting estimate of trips per person per month 4.8 3.2 2.7 4.1
Q3. How do you normally book a Taxi within the Havant area? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
AT A TAXI RANK 34 26.56% | 19 29.23% |22 | 33.33% [ 75 | 28.96%
HAIL IN THE STREET 2 1.56% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 0.77%
TELEPHONE A COMPANY 33 25.78% | 38 58.46% | 37 | 56.06% | 108 | 41.70%
USE A FREEPHONE 2 1.56% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 0.77%
USE MY MOBILE OR SMART PHONE 57 44.53% 8 12.31% 7 | 10.61% | 72 | 27.80%
OTHER — ONLINE 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total 128 | 100.00% | 65 | 100.00% | 66 | 100.00% | 259 | 100.00%

47




—

Q4: If you book a taxi by phone, which 3 companies do you call most often? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL

626 (now part of Aqua) 51 42.15% | 3 60.78% | 15| 44.12% | 97 | 47.09%
AQUA CARS 13 10.74% 1 1.96% 2 5.88% 16 7.77%
ANDICARS 52 42.98% 15 2941% |17 | 50.00% | 84 | 40.78%
HAVANT CABS 1 0.83% 4 7.84% 0 0.00% 5 2.43%
SUMMERFIELD TAXIS 1 0.83% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
UBER 3 2.48% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 3 1.46%
Total 121 | 100.00% | 51 100.00% | 34 | 100.00% | 206 | 100.00%

Q5. How often do you use a hackney carriage within the Havant area? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
ALMOST DAILY 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
ONCE A WEEK 3 3.00% 0 0.00% 1 2.08% 4 2.02%
A FEW TIMES A MONTH 6 6.00% 1 2.00% 2 4.17% 9 4.55%
ONCE A MONTH 6 6.00% 6 12.00% 2 4.17% 14 7.07%
LESS THAN ONCE A MONTH 29 29.00% 16 32.00% |17 | 35.42% | 62 | 31.31%
| CANT REMEMBER WHEN | LAST USED A HACKNEY
CARRIAGE 51 51.00% | 24 48.00% | 23 | 47.92% | 98 | 49.49%
| CANT REMEMBER SEEING A HACKNEY CARRIAGE IN HAVANT 5 5.00% 3 6.00% 3 6.25% 11 5.56%
Total 100 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 48 | 100.00% | 198 | 100.00%
Almost daily 20
Once a week 4
A few times a month
Once a month 1
Less than once a month 0.5

Resulting estimate of trips per person per month 0.4 0.3 0.4 0.4

48




OO

Q6: Which ranks are you aware of in the Havant area? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
STATION 79 83.16% | 44 65.67% |41 ] 93.18% | 164 | 79.61%
LEIGH PARK 1 1.05% 14 20.90% 0 0.00% 15 7.28%
LEIGH PARK LIBRARY 0 0.00% 2 2.99% 0 0.00% 2 0.97%
HAYLING SEAFRONT 3 3.16% 2 2.99% 3 6.82% 8 3.88%
HAYLING 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
HAYLING ISLAND 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
SEAFRONT 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
DENVILLES 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
EMSWORTH STATION 0 0.00% 1 1.49% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
HAVANT 0 0.00% 1 1.49% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
HSBC 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
LIBRARY 0 0.00% 3 4.48% 0 0.00% 3 1.46%
MARKET PARADE 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
MCDONALDS 2 211% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 0.97%
PARK PARADE 2 211% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 0.97%
SAINSBURYS 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
TESCO 1 1.05% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 0.49%
Total 95 | 100.00% | 67 | 100.00% [ 44 | 100.00% [ 206 | 100.00%
Q7: Is there anywhere in the Havant area you would like to see a rank? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
ASDA 1 5.26% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 3.23%
BINGO 0 0.00% 1 33.33% 0 0.00% 1 3.23%
BUS STATION 2 10.53% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 6.45%
CENTRAL HAVANT 2 10.53% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 6.45%
EMSWORTH STATION 1 5.26% 0 0.00% 6 | 66.67% 7 22.58%
EMSWORTH 1 5.26% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 3.23%
EMSWORTH TOWN SQUARE 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 | 22.22% 2 6.45%
TESCO 6 31.58% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 6 19.35%
HAYLING 1 5.26% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 3.23%
HIGH STREET 1 5.26% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 3.23%
LEIGH PARK 1 5.26% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 3.23%
LIDL 0 0.00% 2 66.67% 0 0.00% 2 6.45%
SAINSBURYS 1 5.26% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 3.23%

49




P

SOUTH STREET SQUARE 0 0.00% 0.00% 11.11% 1 3.23%
WATERLOOVILLE 2 10.53% 0.00% 0.00% 2 6.45%
Total 19 | 100.00% 100.00% | 9 | 100.00% | 31 | 100.00%
Q8. Have you had any problems with the local hackney carriage service? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
DESIGN OR TYPE OF VEHICLE 0 0.00% 1 3.45% 0 0.00% 1 1.28%
DRIVER ISSUES 3 9.68% 3 10.34% 1 5.56% 7 8.97%
POSITION OF RANKS 1 3.23% 1 3.45% 1 5.56% 3 3.85%
DELAY IN GETTING A TAXI 10 32.26% 9 31.03% | 10| 55.56% | 29 | 37.18%
CLEANLINESS 0 0.00% 1 3.45% 0 0.00% 1 1.28%
OTHER PROBLEMS (SPECIFY) 17 54.84% | 14 48.28% 6 | 33.33% | 37 | 47.44%
Total 31 100.00% [ 29 | 100.00% | 18 | 100.00% | 78 | 100.00%
Q9. What would encourage you to use Taxis or use them more often? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
BETTER STANDARD OF VEHICLES 0 0.00% 2 5.13% 0 0.00% 2 1.29%
MORE HACKNEY CARRIAGES | COULD PHONE 1 1.08% 1 2.56% 0 0.00% 2 1.29%
BETTER DRIVERS 12 12.90% 3 7.69% 1 4.35% 16 | 10.32%
MORE HACKNEY CARRIAGES | COULD HAIL OR GET AT A
RANK 13 13.98% 7 17.95% 7 | 30.43% | 27 | 17.42%
BETTER LOCATED RANKS 6 6.45% 1 2.56% 9 | 39.13% | 16 | 10.32%
MORE OR DIFFERENT TYPES OF VEHICLES 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
OTHER - CHEAPER COSTS 61 65.59% | 25 64.10% 6 | 26.09% | 92 | 59.35%
Total 93 | 100.00% | 39 | 100.00% | 23 | 100.00% [ 155 | 100.00%
Q10. Do you consider you, or anyone you know, to have a disability that
means you need an adapted vehicle? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
NO 89 89.00% [ 43 87.76% | 78 | 100.00% | 210 | 92.51%
YES - WAV 3 3.00% 1 2.04% 0 0.00% 4 1.76%
SOMEONE | KNOW - WAV 4 4.00% 2 4.08% 0 0.00% 6 2.64%
YES BUT NOT WAV 0 0.00% 2 4.08% 0 0.00% 2 0.88%
SOMEONE | KNOW BUT NOT WAV 4 4.00% 1 2.04% 0 0.00% 5 2.20%
OTHER 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
Total 100 | 100.00% [ 49 | 100.00% | 78 | 100.00% | 227 | 100.00%

50




Q11. If you arrived at a rank and there were saloon and WAV there, which

vehicle would you choose? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
THE FIRST ONE AVAILABLE 87 88.78% | 46 | 100.00% |49 | 98.00% | 182 | 91.00%
THE SALOON CAR 11 11.22% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 11 5.50%
THE WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE VEHICLE 2 2.04% 4 8.70% 1 2.00% 7 3.50%
Total 98 100.00% | 46 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 200 | 100.00%
Q12. If you chose a vehicle type in Q11, why did you choose that specific
type? HAVANT LEIGH PARK | EMSWORTH TOTAL
CONVENIENCE 19 7917% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 19 | 46.34%
DO NOT REQUIRE WAV 1 4.17% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 2.44%
FAIRNESS TO USERS IN NEED OF WAV 4 16.67% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 4 9.76%
MORE SPACE 2 8.33% 1 25.00% 1 1100.00% | 4 9.76%
RELATIVE NEEDS WAV 1 4.17% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 2.44%
NO WAITING 6 25.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 6 14.63%
PICK FIRST ONE 1 4.17% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 2.44%
REQUIRE WAV 1 4.17% 3 75.00% 0 0.00% 4 9.76%
WAV MORE EXPENSIVE 1 4.17% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 2.44%
Total 24 100.00% | 4 100.00% | 1 | 100.00% | 41 | 100.00%
Q13. Have you ever given up waiting for a hackney carriage in the Havant
area? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
NO 78 78.00% | 43 86.00% |46 | 92.00% [ 167 | 83.50%
YES 22 22.00% 7 14.00% 4 8.00% 33 | 16.50%
Total 100 | 100.00% [ 50 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 200 | 100.00%
Q14. If you answered YES to the previous question, please state where. HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
WOODCOTT 2 9.09% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 2 6.25%
CO-OP ST ALBANS ROAD 3 13.64% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 3 9.38%
STATION 16 72.73% 6 100.00% | 4 | 100.00% | 26 | 81.25%
WARDENS CRESENT HAYLING 1 4.55% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 1 3.13%
Total 22 100.00% | 6 100.00% | 4 | 100.00% | 32 | 100.00%

51




25

Q15. Do you have regular access to a car? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
YES 56 56.00% | 37 74.00% |47 | 78.33% [ 140 | 66.67%
NO 44 44.00% 13 26.00% | 13| 21.67% | 70 | 33.33%
Total 100 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 60 | 100.00% | 210 | 100.00%
Q16. Would you prefer all local hackney carriages to be more distinctive by
them all being the same colour? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
YES 32 32.00% 9 18.00% | 10 | 20.00% | 51 | 25.50%
NO 18 18.00% 2 4.00% 1 2.00% 21 | 10.50%
DON'T KNOW 50 50.00% | 39 78.00% [ 39| 78.00% [ 128 | 64.00%
Total 100 | 100.00% [ 50 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 200 | 100.00%
Q17. Do you live in the area? HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
YES 54 75.00% [ 20 90.91% 2 | 40.00% | 76 | 76.77%
NO 18 25.00% 2 9.09% 3 | 60.00% | 23 | 23.23%
Total 72 100.00% | 22 | 100.00% [ 5 | 100.00% | 99 | 100.00%
Q18. Gender HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
MALE 41 41.00% [ 23 46.00% | 25| 50.00% | 89 | 44.50%
FEMALE 59 59.00% | 27 54.00% | 25| 50.00% | 111 | 55.50%
Total 100 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 200 | 100.00%
Q19: Age HAVANT LEIGH PARK EMSWORTH TOTAL
1. Under 30 44 44.00% 19 38.00% 4 8.00% 67 | 33.50%
2.31-55 46 46.00% [ 22 44.00% | 12| 24.00% | 80 | 40.00%
3. Over 55 10 10.00% 9 18.00% | 34 | 68.00% | 53 | 26.50%
Total 100 | 100.00% [ 50 | 100.00% | 50 | 100.00% | 200 | 100.00%

Census
48%
52%

20%
36%
44%

52




Appendix 3 Stakeholder Feedback Diary

Chapter

Stakeholder Group / Person

Views
returned?

Supermarkets

Iceland, Havant

Waitrose, Havant

Asda, Havant

<<=

Tesco Extra, Havant

)
3
=
(@)
=

Q
>
(@)

A

Farmfoods, Leigh Park

Waitrose, Waterlooville

Morrison’s, Waterlooville

J+K, Creek Road, Hayling Island

Sainsbury’s, Hayling Island

<|Z22|<[2

Hotels

Bear Hotel, Havant

Brookfield Hotel, Emsworth

Langstone Hotel, Hayling Island

The Jingles B&B Hotel

Premier Inn, Portsmouth Havant
South

z |<|=<|<]|=<

Restaurants

Aroma Oriental, Havant

Red Chilli, Havant

Chilli and Lime, Havant

Poppins Restaurant

Fat Olives, Emsworth

2\ 22|12

Night clubs / Entertainment /
Pubs

The Spring Arts and Heritage Centre

Ferry Boat Inn, Hayling Island

Lily Sugars, Creek Road, Hayling
Island

Ship Inn, Emsworth

Railway Inn, Emsworth

The Heron, Leigh Park

Heroes, Waterlooville

Denmead Queen, Waterlooville

The Robin Hood, Havant

The Old House at Home, Havant

Portsmouth Jazz Society Club

Zl<|<|z|<|<<|<| < |Z|z

Hospital

Havant NHS Diagnostic Centre

Page 87




Disability, equality and other
local group representatives,
including County and Havant
Council officers

Waterlooville Community Forum Ceased
Warblington and Denvilles Residents
Association (N)
West Bedhampton Residents
o Ceased
Association
Hayling Island Residents Association N
NEHRA N
HADAG N
Alan Johnston Y
Hampshire County Social Services / N
Education Transport
Parking and Traffic Management,
. Y
Havant Council
Police
No response N
Rail operating companies
South West Trains, Retail Standards Y
Dept, Adele Richards
Karl Mc Cormack, Southern Trains (N)
Hackney carriage and private hire
trade
Via letter and questionnaire Y

Page 88




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Charges for Taxis and Private Hire Licensing
	Appendix A  - Prices Book Entry 2017-18
	Appendix B – Financial Analysis Figures
	Appendix C – Effect of Proposed Charges on Annual Iincome
	Appendix D – Integrated Impact Assessment

	7 Hackney Carriage Unmet Demand Survey
	Appendix B -Unmet Demand Survey 2016


